

WebSphere. software

A guide to IBM WebSphere Portal, Version 5.1.

Contents

- 2 Introduction: The portal vision
- 3 IBM WebSphere Portal: A leading-edge portal platform
- 5 WebSphere Portal architecture
- 8 Portlets
- 10 Portlet applications
- 10 Portlet modes
- 11 The portlet API
- 11 Portlet performance
- 12 Standards
- 13 Portlet cooperation
- 14 Brokered cooperation
- 15 Discoverable services
- 16 Development tools
- 18 Content management
- 20 Document management
- 22 Web content management
- 25 Productivity components
- 30 Security
- 41 Personalization
- 44 Cascading authorization for portal customizations
- 45 Skins and themes
- 49 WebSphere Portal release builder
- 49 Virtual portals
- 50 Universal access
- 52 Using portlets to administer your portal
- 64 Collaborative services
- 66 Business process integration and task management
- 68 Dynamic UI configurations
- 69 IBM WebSphere Commerce
- 69 Mobile portals
- 71 Supporting new devices
- 74 A complete platform for collaboration and enterprise application integration
- 74 For more information

Introduction: The portal vision

As a core component of IBM[®] Workplace[™] technology, the front end of computing that strives to make people more productive in the context of the business they do every day, IBM WebSphere[®] Portal for Multiplatforms, Version 5.1 helps simplify your organization's technology infrastructure by offering a single point of personalized interaction with applications, content, processes and people. To deliver a unified user experience, and an innovative, adaptive user environment designed to transform productivity, WebSphere Portal brings together a range of leading-edge technologies designed to give you a flexible, open, extensible framework to build successful business-to-employee (B2E), business-to-business (B2B) and business-to-consumer (B2C) portals.

This leading-edge family of products, technologies and solutions enables you to customize work environments based on users' unique roles in your organization. WebSphere Portal software can help reduce costs by leveraging existing investments in enterprise applications, data and security technology – while you evolve to meet the challenges of today's on demand business environment.

WebSphere Portal software is an open-standards-based framework supporting a range of options across databases, directories, platforms and security, with portlets serving as a key component. The term *portlet* refers to a small portal application, usually depicted as a small box in the Web page. Portlets are reusable components that provide access to enterprise applications, Web-based content, host and data systems, content-management systems, processdriven workflow applications, and other resources. Web pages, Web services, applications and syndicated content feeds can be accessed through portlets. WebSphere Portal software includes pre-integrated portlets, cross-portlet integration for all application types, tools that enable you to create new portlets easily and the ability to construct composite applications to manage business processes and workflow transactions spanning multiple enterprise systems. As a result, WebSphere Portal helps organizations move beyond fragmented application silos while hiding the complexity of the IT infrastructure. These advantages help improve employee productivity and business responsiveness, help cut costs and strengthen relationships with customers and partners.



This white paper is intended to help IBM clients, independent software vendors (ISVs) and application architects plan their use of WebSphere Portal. It explains a range of WebSphere Portal features, including portal application and integration capabilities, security, user management, administration, document management, content publishing, search, personalization, collaboration, and process integration. IBM envisions portals as the key to providing a personalized, relevant Web experience, enabling users to readily find the people, processes and information relevant to their roles – and the ability to manage the selection and personalization of content to suit their changing needs.

IBM WebSphere Portal: A leading-edge portal platform

WebSphere Portal uses the advantages provided by the IBM WebSphere software platform. The WebSphere software platform delivers standards-based integration and infrastructure software to maximize business flexibility and responsiveness. As Figure 1 shows, the WebSphere software platform is built with services to support scalable, reliable Web applications, with components and technologies that enable you to add extensions to new applications and processes, and provide integrated collaborative services.



Figure 1. WebSphere software for on demand business

The WebSphere software platform capabilities can be grouped into five areas of functionality.

People integration

Interact with information, applications and business processes at any time from anywhere to personalize Web-based content and to make it accessible to any device. WebSphere products, such as WebSphere Portal, fine-tune your users' experiences and provide broad access for your customers, employees, business and trading partners, and remote branch offices.

Process integration

Optimize and integrate internal business processes – or even processes that involve your business partners – to keep them in line with strategic goals. WebSphere offerings such as WebSphere Business Integration Server Foundation make it easy for your company to implement applications and business processes that can streamline supply chain management (SCM) and help you enable existing processes for the Web.

Information integration

Access and manage information that is typically scattered throughout the enterprise and across the value chain. WebSphere offerings such as IBM WebSphere Information Integrator manage storage, organization and access to structured and unstructured content and data sources across geographical locations.

Application integration

Helps ensure reliable and flexible information flow between diverse applications and organizations. WebSphere software supports standards-based communication protocols and application adapter interfaces, enabling reliable and seamless exchange of data between multiple applications.

Application infrastructure

Build, deploy, integrate and enhance new and existing applications. Help ensure a reliable enterprise processing infrastructure, extend legacy applications and logic and modernize interfaces for use in new Web environments.

WebSphere Portal software provides an extensible framework for interacting with enterprise applications, content, people and business processes. It includes IBM WebSphere Application Server and WebSphere Business Integration Server Foundation components to support scalable Web application server and business-process integration solutions managed from the portal framework. WebSphere Portal self-service features enable users to personalize and organize their own view of the portal, to manage their own profile, and to publish and share documents with their colleagues.

WebSphere Portal architecture

By integrating key IBM products and technologies, and providing application programming interfaces (APIs) and extension points for Business Partners and clients to extend and customize their environments, WebSphere Portal has become the industry's most comprehensive portal solution, and represents the de facto standard on demand business architecture (see Figure 2).



Figure 2. WebSphere Portal architecture

The more fully you integrate and leverage your work environment, the more you can embrace on demand business principles. An on demand business is an enterprise where business processes, integrated end to end across the company and with key partners, suppliers and customers, can respond with speed to almost any customer demand, market opportunity or external threat. More than operational efficiency, on demand business is about building a dynamic infrastructure that allows you to integrate, modify and leverage existing applications and processes cost-effectively.

As Web-based applications enter the era of on demand business, WebSphere Portal leads the transformation with a variety of capabilities, including delegated administration, cascading page layouts and portal federation through Web services. It also includes support for standards, advanced portlet application concepts, process integration, task management and search services. Complementary offerings enable enhanced mobile functions, such as intelligent notification, offline browsing and data synchronization.

Other offerings that use the services of the WebSphere Portal foundation platform are also available. These include IBM[®] Workplace[™] Services Express, a team-collaboration and document-management environment for small-to-midsize deployments. Another offering is IBM[®] Workplace[™] Collaboration Services, a solution designed to provide a platform for advanced team collaboration, messaging and chat services, and activity-explorer, document-management and learning applications. IBM[®] Workplace[™] Collaboration Services provides a choice of client experiences, ranging from standard browsers to rich-client applications, and uses a network-oriented application deployment model, improving administrative and user implementation processes. IBM[®] Workplace[™] offerings also include industryspecific solutions that can offer preconfigured capabilities built to support user and team productivity, and business-management capabilities, which take advantage of supporting WebSphere Portal application-integration framework services.

IBM WebSphere Portal for Multiplatforms, Version 5.1 is available in several editions (see Table 1), each designed to provide the infrastructure you need to build and deploy highly scalable portals. All offerings share a common framework (the portal server), and might share certain products and services. The portal server provides common services, such as application connectivity, integration, administration and presentation that are required across portal environments. To get the latest details about supported platforms, system requirements and version numbers, visit **ibm.com**/software/genservers/ portal/.

IBM WebSphere Portal Enable

Model	Advantage
IBM WebSphere Portal server	Provides presentation, user management, security and other services for constructing a portal.
IBM®WebSpherePortal personalization engine	Includes advanced personalization technologies to target Web content to meet user needs and preferences.
IBM® Workplace Web Content Management™	Provides tools for authoring, personalizing and publishing content and documents contributed to the portal.
IBM WebSphere Portal Document Manager	Centralizes document storage, organization and version-management services.
Productivity components	Offers an inline view and edit capabilities designed to support rich text, spreadsheet and presentation content.
IBM Tivoli® Directory Server	Provides a Lightweight Directory Access Protocol (LDAP) server.
IBM WebSphere Translation Server	Delivers translation services that enable Web content, e-mail and chat content conversions across languages.
IBM Rational® Application Developer	Provides professional developer tools to create, test, debug and deploy portlets, servlets and other assets related to portals and Web applications.
IBM Lotus Collaboration Center	Includes preconfigured pages and portlets to deliver out-of-the-box portlet access to IBM Lotus® Domino® and extended products, including IBM Lotus Notes® and Domino mail and applications, IBM Lotus Domino Document Manager, IBM Lotus Instant Messaging (Sametime®), IBM Lotus Team Workplace (QuickPlace®), and IBM Lotus Web Conferencing Server.
Collaborative components	Includes Java [™] application programming interfaces (APIs) that provide the building blocks for integrating the functionality of Domino, Lotus Instant Messaging and Lotus Team Workplace into portals and portlets.
WebSphere Portal Extend	

All products in WebSphere Portal Enable	Includes the same portal server and personalization functions as WebSphere Portal Enable.
IBM Lotus Extended Search	Delivers parallel, distributed, heterogeneous searching capabilities across Lotus Notes and Domino databases, Microsoft® sources, relational database management system (RDBMS) data stores, Web search sites and other sources.
IBM Tivoli Web Site Analyzer	Analyzes Web-site usage logs to reveal information that you can use to improve your portal to provide better user experiences.
Lotus Instant Messaging	Offers instant messaging, presence awareness and Web-conferencing services.
Lotus Team Workplace	Provides a Web-based solution to create team workspaces for collaboration. Features include discussions, document collaborations, and the ability to coordinate plans, tasks and resources.

Table 1. WebSphere Portal for Multiplatforms, Version 5.1 product editions

Choosing a WebSphere Portal offering can help you realize tangible business and technical benefits, including:

- Improved revenue-generating capabilities as a result of tighter relationships with customers or partners, workforce productivity, innovation and reduced cycle times
- Reduced operational costs as a result of improved operational efficiency, better information flow and knowledge, and a consistent infrastructure
- Increased employee productivity and improved decision making as a result of providing access to more-relevant information and offering a single access point to collaborative services, applications and processes
- A better user experience as a result of improved authentication, security and single signon capability
- Reduced training costs as a result of a common presentation and a consistent user interface
- An extended, more useful life for applications and processes as a result of unifying their presentation and providing a means of accessing them through desktop and mobile devices

The WebSphere Portal offerings allow an on demand business to quickly capitalize on its IT and human assets while presenting a first-class Web experience to its employees, partners and customers.

Portlets

You can select from portlets provided in the WebSphere Portal release, including prebuilt portlets and Web and application integration portlet tools. You can also choose from a catalog of portlets created by IBM and by IBM Business Partners, or you can create your own portlets.

Any particular portlet is developed, deployed, managed and displayed independent of other portlets. Administrators and end users create personalized portal pages by choosing and arranging portlets, resulting in Web pages that present content tailored for individuals, teams, divisions and organizations (see Figure 3).



Figure 3. A typical portal page

The portal server includes a rich set of standard portlets for storing and sharing documents, displaying syndicated content and performing XML transformation. It also includes portlets for accessing existing Web pages and data applications, Lotus Notes and Microsoft Exchange productivity applications, Lotus Instant Messaging and Lotus Team Workplace applications. IBM also offers new and updated portlets and solutions from IBM and IBM Business Partners, called the *IBM WebSphere Portal Catalog*. In Figure 4, you can see just a few of the portlets available from IBM and IBM Business Partners through the catalog. You can visit the catalog Web site at **ibm.com**/websphere/portal/catalog.



Figure 4. IBM WebSphere Portal Catalog

Portlet applications

Portlets are more than simple views of existing Web content. A portlet is a complete application, following a standard model-view-controller (MVC) design. Portlets have multiple states and view modes, as well as event and messaging capabilities. Portlets run inside the portlet container of a portal server, similar to a servlet running on an application server. The portlet container provides a run-time environment in which portlets are instantiated, used and, finally, destroyed. Portlets rely on the portal infrastructure to access user-profile information, participate in window and action events, communicate with other portlets, access remote content, search for credentials and store persistent data.

Generally, you can administer portlets more dynamically than servlets. For example, you can install or remove portlet applications consisting of several portlets while a server is running. You can also change the settings and access rights of a portlet while the portal is running, even in a production environment.

Portlet modes

Portlet modes allow a portlet to display a different user interface, depending on the task required of the portlet. A portlet has several modes of display, which can be invoked by icons on the portlet title bar. These modes include *view*, *help*, *edit* and *configure*.

A portlet is initially displayed in its *view* mode. As the user interacts with the portlet, it might display a sequence of view states, such as forms and responses, error messages, and other application-specific states. The *help* mode provides user assistance about the portlet. *Edit* mode provides a page for users to change the portlet settings. For example, a weather portlet might include an edit page so that users can specify their location. Users must log into the portal to access edit mode. If *configure* mode is supported by a portlet, it provides a page for portal administrators to configure portlet settings that are shared by instances of that portlet.

Each portlet mode can be displayed in *normal, maximized* or *minimized* states. When a portlet is maximized, it is displayed in the entire body of the portal page, replacing the view of other portlets. When a portlet is minimized, only the portlet title bar is displayed on the portal page.

The portlet API

Portlets are a special subclass of the HttpServlet class, with properties that allow them to easily plug into and run in the portal server. They are assembled into a larger portal page, with multiple occurrences of the same portlet displaying different data for each user. The portlet API provides standard interfaces for portlet functions. It defines a common base class and interfaces for portlets to cleanly separate the portlet from the portal infrastructure. For the most part, the portlet API is an extension of the servlet API, except that it restricts certain functions to a subset that makes sense for portlets running in the context of a portal. For example, unlike servlets, portlets cannot send errors or redirect messages as a response. This can be performed only by the portal itself, which controls the overall response page.

The markup fragments that portlets produce can contain links, actions and other content. The portlet API defines URL rewriting methods that allow portlets to transparently create links without needing to know how URLs are structured in the particular portal.

Portlet performance

Because portlets are essentially servlets, similar reentrance and performance considerations apply to both. A single portlet instance (that is, a single instance of the portlet's Java class) is shared among all requesters. A limited number of threads can process portlets and servlets, so each portlet must do its job as quickly as possible to optimize response time for the whole page. Just as with servlet programming, you should consider optimizations such as limiting the use of synchronized methods, limiting the use of expensive string operations, avoiding long-running loops and minimizing the number of objects created. You can also optimize response times by using JavaServer Pages (JSP) to render the portlet's views. In general, views created with JSP are faster than views created with Extensible Stylesheet Language (XSL).

Usually, several portlets are invoked in the course of handling a single request, each one appending its content to the overall page. Some portlets can be rendered in parallel, so that the portal server assembles all the markup fragments when all the portlets finish or time out. This improves the performance of portlets that access remote data by HTTP or Simple Object Access Protocol (SOAP) requests. However, not all portlets are thread-safe. For example, portlets that access protected resources cannot run in parallel. The portlet deployment descriptor indicates whether the portlet is considered thread-safe. Portlets that are not thread-safe are rendered sequentially. Portlet output can also be cached. Caching policies are configured in the portlet deployment descriptor. You can include an expiration time and whether the portlet markup can be shared among users or is user-specific.

Standards

As portals continue to evolve into the new desktop and integration standard, IBM directs efforts to standardize the APIs between portals and other applications, and often assumes lead technical positions within many standards organizations. In particular, the Java Community Process (JCP) and the Organization for the Advancement of Structured Information Standards (OASIS) work cooperatively to standardize the Java and XML technology needed to link portals to disparate applications. Some of these standards include or will include:

- Java Specification Request (JSR) 168, a specification from JCP that addresses the requirements of aggregation, personalization, presentation and security for portlets running in a portal environment. JSR 168 is co-led by IBM and Sun Microsystems, Inc., and is designed to facilitate interoperability between local portlets and portal servers. WebSphere Portal includes a portlet run-time environment with a JSR 168 portlet container that supports operation of portlets developed according to the Java Portlet Specification defined by JSR 168.
- JSR 170, a proposed specification from JCP designed to implement a standard meta-model definition and an API for bidirectional, granular access to content repositories. This should result in platform-independent methods to interact across content-management solutions and associated services including versioning, search, content categorization, access control and event monitoring. IBM is a participant in the expert-member group defining the JSR 170 content repository for Java technology APIs. When JSR 170 is published, IBM plans to support this standard across its content-management offerings, and will use the JSR 170 repository to store all portal content.
- OASIS Web Services for Remote Portals (WSRP), an XML and Web services standard that enables the interoperability of visual, user-facing services with portals or other Web applications. The OASIS WSRP standard simplifies the integration of remote applications and content into portals by defining a Web service interface for interactive presentation-oriented Web services. The producer part of the WSRP implementation provides an entry point into the producer portal, enabling the portal to provide portlet applications or single portlets as WSRP services. A WSRP consumer is a portal that wants to integrate WSRP services and consume them as remote portlets from portals that provide them. As a result, using WSRP makes integrating content and applications into portals easier, eliminating the requirement for custom coding or the use of a variety of protocols and interfaces to adapt Web services for use in their portal implementation. WebSphere Portal, Version 5.1 includes support for producer and consumer WSRP services.

• Struts, a Jakarta open-source project that provides a framework based on the MVC pattern. It enables developers to efficiently separate an application's business logic from its presentation. Struts enforces sequences of pages and actions and provides form-validation functions. WebSphere Portal, Version 5.1 includes support for the Struts, Version 1.1 framework to build portlets. To work in portlets, you must observe specific technical details when using Struts. For example, when used in portlets, a Struts action should not write to the response object, and should not create header elements like HEAD and BODY tags. The Struts application must be packaged with several replacement Java Archive (JAR) files that help ensure that URLs, forward actions and include actions run correctly in a portal environment.

Portlet cooperation

The portal server provides a mechanism for portlets to communicate with each other, exchanging data or other messages. In a production portal, you can use portlet communication to copy common data between portlets. This capability saves time by minimizing the need for redundant typing by the user and makes the portal easier to use. For example, one portlet might display information about accounts while a second portlet displays information about transactions that have occurred for one of the accounts over the past 30 days. To do this, the transactions portlet needs to obtain the corresponding account information when it displays the transaction details. This action is accomplished by communication between the two portlets, using portlet actions and portlet messages. For example, the account portlet creates a portlet action and encodes it into the URL that is rendered for displaying transactions. When the link is clicked, the action listener is called, and a portlet message is launched to send the necessary data.

Programmatic messaging helps unify portlet applications that access different back-end applications. However, programmatic messaging is relatively static, and requires planning and design work in advance. The portlets that are exchanging messages must already know about each other to make the interchange work. The next section discusses a more flexible means of portlet cooperation.

Brokered cooperation

Brokered cooperation enables independently developed portlets to exchange information. Portlets register their intent to cooperate with a broker, which facilitates the exchanges at run time. The broker works by matching data types between the sources in one portlet and the actions of another portlet. When the types match, a transfer is possible, and the broker enables the user to trigger the transfer through a pop-up menu. The term *click-to-action* is used to describe this menu-driven, brokered data exchange (see Figure 5).



Figure 5. Exchanging information through the click-to-action feature

The objective of click-to-action portlets is to increase the productivity of portal users working with multiple portlets by easily enabling them to send information from one portlet to another. For example, users can click information that is displayed in one portlet and transfer that information to another portlet. The portlet receiving the information processes it and updates its display. The click-to-action capability automatically matches portlet information sources and possible actions based on their data-type compatibility. Click-to-action does not rely on drag-and-drop or other nonstandard browser features. It also offers the unique advantage of being able to work in different browsers – making it more accessible to users.

An extension of this idea, *cooperative portlets*, is also supported by WebSphere Portal. Using cooperative-portlet capabilities, administrators can prewire portlets so that they exchange data automatically (see Figure 6). Data transfers along the wires using the same broker as click-to-action. Besides saving the extra step of having the user click the data source to select a target, wiring portlets together enables greater flexibility to match brokered values.



Figure 6. Prewired cooperating portlets

Discoverable services

The portlet API provides an interface to enable dynamic discovery of available services. Each service is registered in a portal configuration file, and is accessed from the PortletContext.getService() method, which searches the factory for the service, creates the service and returns it to the portlet. This method makes services available to all portlets without having to package the service code with the portlet. And you can exchange or enhance the implementation of this kind of service transparently—without affecting the portlet.

The portal server provides discoverable services for its credential vault to manage persistent TCP/IP connections and to manage the portal content repository. Portal developers can implement new services as options, to further customize their infrastructure, such as location, notification, content access or mail services.

Development tools

WebSphere Portal includes a range of development options, from nonprogrammatic business-user tools, Web clipping and Web services application-integration techniques, to Java 2 Platform, Enterprise Edition (J2EE) technology-based portlet and portlet development tools to provide interactive access and data cooperation services across a range of Web, database, content management, enterprise resource planning (ERP), customer relationship management (CRM) and other solutions. More developer tools supporting portlet and portal development are available from IBM Business Partners.

IBM Rational Application Developer, Version 6.0 is a comprehensive integrated development environment (IDE), with full support for the J2EE programming model, including Web, Java, Web services, EJB and portal application development (see Figure 7). The product includes a set of visual portal development tools and a WebSphere Portal test environment, enabling you to build and test individual portlets and entire portal applications. Portlet wizards create a complete portlet that complies with the IBM Portlet API, as well as the new JSR 168 Portlet API, the industrystandard specification that addresses the requirements of aggregation, personalization, presentation and security for portlets running in a portal environment.

The visual portlet-development tool enables you to build rich user interfaces for portlets quickly with JavaServer Faces (JSF) components that generate code for event handling, user-input validation and data handling. These tools also connect portlets to relational databases, Enterprise JavaBeans (EJB) components, Web services and enterprise information systems (EISs), such as SAP and Siebel, through point-and-click operations (see Figure 8).

roject_ 23 Gallery - D	CustomerListView.jsp 23		TicketDetaiUpdate.js	23 q	D & Palette X "1 "
🔁 = 😫 👻	CustomerListp - Untitled 🔄 + h:dataTr	able * Standard *	TicketDeUntitled	E • Stan	tard • HTML Tags
Enterprise Applications Application Client Projects Connector Projects EJB Projects Danamic Web Projects	e Customer List		Ticket ID: Title:	(ticketId) ^{and} {title}	JSP Tags Crystal Reports Faces Faces Components
AuctionPortal	Customer ID Name C	Contact	Customer ID:	{customerId}	Panel - Group Box
WPFacesPortletExample			Contact:	{contact}	Panel - Menu Bar
III - 🚱 Portlet Deployment Dv III - 🥭 Java Resources	(customerId) ** (contact) **		Owner:	{owner}	Command - Hyperlink
E META-INF		Status:	{status}	Lingut	
IE 😂 WEB-INF IE 🍃 wod			Note:	{note}	Rich Test Area
CustomerLatView TicketDetail/Jpde TicketDetail/Jpde TicketDetail/Jpde TicketLatView.jsc Other Projects Web Services Detablese	12345		≇{Error Messa Submit	Check Box Check Box Radio Button Group Combo Box	
Database Servers					Page Template
nge Data 22 34 🔍 💭	Design Source Preview		Design Source Preview	v	Pontiet Otlick-to-Action Dutpu Property Otlick-to-Action Dutpu Properties Properties Properties
Portiet	Properties 23 Quick Edit Servers Console	Problems			C Data
Portiel Data Portiel Data Portiel Settings Uner Customed List [com bm faces : Customed List [com bm faces : Contact [java.larg. S name (java.larg. S	Eview Table content style hiscogric/Galector hidsm bidsm classes (cdum/Cit hidsm bidsm classes (cdum/Cit bidsm classes (cdum/C	Paging att1 3 12345 1245 1	Bows per page. Add a geto style pager Add a geto pager Add a getwe pager Add a jimple pager Add a jimple pager	Categorization add Add column to categorize table o	Sishel Record List Web Service ElS Sealon bean Pastaneal Record List Sealon Bean Pastaneal Record List

Figure 7. Visual portlet development using Rational Application Developer

Edit Toober Least 20 Format Table Fr	ere Pege Tools Nevigate Search Project Bun Performance Window Help	
	[≈≈ द ल ल ल] छ छ] छ छ] ७ • • • • •] छ	3 Web Chesour
Project Explorer 22 Gallery	🕫 🔄 🔄 SebeDemoAppQueryForm.3p 🕄 🖉 AccountListView.3p 🔮 Web Browser 🚺 AccountListView.3	ava 🛛 🕲 🗞 Palette 🖾 🦹 🖓
15 E \$	▼ SebeDeno4ppQuen#om (sp -Unitied	· Standard · HTML Tags
* 1 SebeDenoCIA		A Start Tags
Application Client Projects	Query By Account Name,	Faces Components
Connector Projects		Ter Data Table
EIB Projects		Contract Contra Barr
Dynanic Web Projects	- Account Name	Panel - Group Hox
E Serverio	(accountName)	Panes - Tabled
Sebel Sandard	de	Panel - Menu Bar
R Sy Deployment Descriptor : SebeDemoAco		Connand - Button
🐨 🌄 Portlet Deployment Descriptor	Submit	Connand - Hyperin
🖃 🥭 Java Resources	Submit	<i>₿</i> unk
E- 🥭 JeveSource	L	(Input
El 🖶 pagecode		(TH Insat . Test Area
E Account_stvew.java		Bich Taxt Area
E D Reconcision		Mit Inc. 4 . Barrand
* C SeteDenodorQueryForm		C Chart Day
a jef cortet.jar		Creck box
		C- Creck best Group
		E Kado Button Group
Page Data 21 Outline Client Styles "1		Corbo Bux
	9 e	A Page Template
Scripting Variables	Design Source Preview	Portlet
peran	Properties 22 Ouch Edit Servers Console Problems	D D Dots
- A requestScope		SAP BAPE
🖻 📮 sessionScope	hvisolptCalector [di text] Earnati String	SAP RPM
account/iame (java.lang.String)	httpm (aller zisessoringe and others)	Ti Siebel Record
Portet	P	Sebel Record List
ALLOTS	To him freet Style: Prop: 25	- Ja Wab Sarvice
Contract Sector ()	Unitation (Investigen Post	EUB Session bean
	. remain	Co Relational Record
	Central Same Working Characters	- Deletered Decend to
	· Accessibility dec. moon,round*ectered	
	4	> a revenuel

Figure 8. Using Rational Application Developer to build portlets to access EISs

Rational Application Developer also provides the visual portal site development tools. The portal designer enables you to create portal pages and customize the layout of portlets, and edit portal themes and skins that control portal site appearance. The created portal site can be tested on WebSphere Portal test environment or on a separate portal server (see Figure 9).

Web - Portal Configuration - IB	M Rational Software Develo	pment Platform					_ 🗆 🗵
Ele Edit Insert Navigate Segrch	Project Bun Window Help					#2 CALL	S ore
					_	HI Web	OJZEE
Project 23 Gallery	EE Portal Contiguration X					Palette 23	100
TT 📴 Enterning Analysis			Ply Portal	Administration of Edit my profile 1 Log of	oc	Portal	
Application Client Projects	Austin A	_	My Equaritar	New Page. Edit Page. Assign Permission	5.	Row	
EIR Projects	Addum		Phy ravonces	Go	- 1	1) Column	
E Dynamic Web Projects	Listing	Listing Search	/-0	Listing Detail / = 🗆	ыH	Page	
E 2 AuctionPortal	Listing	Title: {title}	Find	Item {itemid}		Label	
Deployment Descripto Portal Configuration		(Frror Messages)		ID: Find		al one	
🛃 UserAdmin portlet		Item ID Title		@{Error Messages}			
ListingSearch por				Title: {title}			
🕑 🎊 Themes				Description: (description)			
E Skins				Value: {value}			
Ge PortalConfiguration		{itemid} 🛛 {title}			-		
🗈 🌮 PortalContent							
AuctionPortlet							
E - G Web Services							
E Databases		Next x Gol					
C Database Servers		Max a Do					
					-11		
1 1							
PEOLEN N. PR							
E Portal Settings							
E Portlets		Succession Reconstruction Productional					
E Skins	Properties 23 Quick Edit	Servers Console Problems		•			
🗈 🚅 Labels	Page Unique name	£	page.fca59ca1ff		-		
- S URLs	- Title Active		-		- 11		
E- Registration	Other pages	can share the contents of this	page: False		님씨		
E Listing	Use content	rom a can be added to a list when	faundar Ert		- 1		
E S Auction	Dudie al	control double to dioset simy	200				
Registration	Theme:				•		
- D Listing	Supported m	arkup			-		
	-						
Selected Ubject Lising							

Figure 9. Customizing a portal site using the portal designer feature in Rational Application Developer

Content management

When companies deploy portals, they want to view, organize, share and find information from various sources, in various formats. WebSphere Portal has comprehensive content-management capabilities, providing support for syndicated content, document management and Web content management. It can integrate with leading Web content-management systems, and includes advanced personalization capabilities and integrated search services, portlets, and features that deliver categorization and summarization functions.

Syndicated content

A key concept related to portal technology is *syndication*, which means the ability to deliver fresh, personalized, and filtered content and services from multiple sources to subscribers. Typically, the content relates to news, finance and entertainment (see Figure 10). Companies that team with IBM to provide this content include MarketWatch, Dialog, Moreover, YellowBrix, Hoovers, Factiva, NewsEdge, MediaApps and DataMonitor.



Figure 10. WebSphere Portal supports standards-based content integration and display.

Companies are embracing syndication concepts and standards to automate the publishing of electronic catalogs and other internal information, and to make this information available to users through enterprise portals. A popular and useful format for syndicated news and entertainment content is really simple syndication (RSS). Content can be published directly from the contentmanagement system into RSS and Open Content Syndication (OCS) channels, where the portal server's built-in RSS portlet can easily display the content. This self-syndication concept defines a procedure for editing, managing and publishing your own sources of content.

Enterprise content management

To manage and search large collections of content – spanning multiple content sources, including databases, records, images, reports, electronic statements, audio, video and Web content – created and used by a variety of applications, you need an enterprise content-management solution like IBM Content Manager. IBM Content Manager provides a portlet-based interface that enables you to leverage its enterprise content-management features within the WebSphere Portal environment. Portlets enabling integration with other leading content-management and search vendors (like Documentum, Fatwire, Vignette, Stellent, Autonomy, Fast and Verity) are also available and can be found in the WebSphere Portal Catalog.

Document management

WebSphere Portal includes document-management capabilities, designed to provide an efficient, centralized repository and management service that enables teams to work collaboratively to author, organize and share documents and other content. The WebSphere Portal Document Manager allows authorized users to view, add, edit, navigate and search across documents within a user-defined folder hierarchy, as shown in Figure 11.

		Hav Page Edit Page As	sign Permissions Search	hi 90
Welcome My W	orkpla	e Documents Web Content Management Personalization 1	My Finances	My Favorites
ocument Manager				+17-
43 Import File	1	dit Document Nev + Folder Actions + More Actions	-	
- Descent Manager			Search in	current folder for:
Default Document L	brary			Q Search
				Advanced Searc
				Page 1 of 1
Document Manager	-	Name	Author	Last Modified
All Documents ALLocked Documents		all Documents		
SPending Drafts	ng Drafts 🗐 files 🍕 Ider 🗖 🖓	Locked Documents		
Q All MD files		Spanding Draftz		
		C QAL MD files		
		D mp.folder		10/28/04
		D BannsDocument	wpsadmin	10/28/04
		□ @word	vpradmin	10/28/04
		Imported Document	wpsadmin	11/1/04
		D Banna MS Document	wpradmin	11/1/04

Figure 11. Portal document management

You can make new and changed documents available immediately or manage them through versioning and approval processes. You can forward document links and folder links through e-mail, enabling users to receive notifications of new and updated content. Documents produced using WebSphere Portal Document Manager can be accessed and published by IBM[®] Workplace Web Content Management[™]. These documents can also be the subject of business rules developed with the WebSphere Portal personalization component. And WebSphere Portal Document Manager software can leverage Lotus Instant Messaging services by surfacing integrated presence awareness and chat services to support team content contributors.

WebSphere Portal Document Manager uses WebSphere Portal access-control capabilities to regulate which users can view or edit specific documents. Privileges can be set on a document library, project, folder, subfolder or individual document. All documents or subfolders inherit the privileges set on a folder contained in that document, unless specifically blocked. This capability makes it easy to efficiently manage access rights on a large collection of documents.

By integrating with the WebSphere Portal search-engine component, WebSphere Portal Document Manager enables users to search on document content, title, description or author, as shown in Figure 12. Results are returned with relevance ratings to the requested search criteria. Documents can include text documents such as HTML, or application-specific documents such as Microsoft Word. Users can view Microsoft Word and more than 250 file formats from WebSphere Portal Document Manager using embedded file viewers. Users can also invoke workstation applications, such as Microsoft Word, directly from the WebSphere Portal Document Manager portlet interface, providing a seamless way to create and edit documents without having to leave the portal user experience.



Figure 12. Advance search features in WebSphere Portal Document Manager

Web content management

Web content-management capabilities enable users to create, approve and publish Web content to Web servers. The steps of this process include defining content types, roles, publication options, destination specifications and workflow processes. Many content-management products are in the marketplace today, including IBM[®] Workplace Web Content Management[™], and other IBM and vendor content-management products. Although each of these products works differently, generally, they are designed to create, maintain and publish collections of structured and unstructured content that can be made available to users through a portal.

WebSphere Portal includes integration kits (available through WebSphere Portal Catalog) that illustrate the specific steps required to publish RSS content from several of the previously mentioned Web content-management products. Content contribution and approval operations of the Web contentmanagement system can also be accessed through portlets provided by each respective company. These portlets provide a user interface into various aspects of the content-management process, such as content submission, workflow management, content approval, and even staging or publishing. WebSphere Portal includes IBM[®] Workplace Web Content Management[™] software, which enables users – such as business users creating template-driven content like press releases or product information, or graphic artists creating and editing artwork using their preferred tools – to contribute content to a Web site as their roles dictate. IBM[®] Workplace Web Content Management[™] supports content contribution through templates or forms and provides specific support to publish content maintained in the WebSphere Portal Document Manager repository. It also supports the ability to contribute files, such as images, HTML or JSP that are created and edited using popular tools such as Macromedia Dreamweaver, Microsoft FrontPage, Adobe Photoshop or Microsoft Word.

Through IBM[®] Workplace Web Content Management[™], users can create elements of a Web page as distinct units, and then put them together in a variety of ways to support componentization and reuse of content resources. This capability yields flexible Web pages that are simple for authors to create and easy for site administrators to maintain (see Figure 13). The product's portlet interface enables users to contribute content to a Web site in an easy-to-use, quick and controlled manner. The concept of componentization remains consistent throughout authoring, site design and maintenance processes. This consistency enables large teams to work together − jointly when applicable, and individually to manage specific tasks.

	t Esplorer		=1Q
ie tidz view Pavarizes Tools Help			
🕽 Sack + 🕥 - 💽 😰 🏠 🔎	Search 🚖 Fevorites 🖨 Medie 🖌	9 🙆 😓 🗔 · 🛄	
Tess in http://bortal.ibmdamo.com/9081/vpe	Invental Ltp. Komi, C4, SSEP/08/0/RM	HNO MEY CERENA 254 25 ani voli teou mwatu Gonu Cerena di Science Assenae	004 - C Go LINS
orge- Bt	learch Web + Ø P ¹ 358 Mocked	E MARE A Options	
and a state of the		New Page Solt Page Analysi Permissions Search	1943
The second state of the second state	Record State Provide State State		M. Franker
othering Contact Design		aca ny wark becomma	permanan 2
h Connert Authoriza			2010/0212
a contract data story			AL 101 (M. 8
Web Content			
and the second se			
Design and Development This view disclass a last of Design an	Development views		
		Showing 1 - 7 of 7 - Pittereck 7	Page 3 of 3
Contern Library	7(200-0	Description	
Design and Development	Presentation Templates	This view displays a list of Presentation Templates.	
Consentation Templates	Presentation Templates by Workford	in This view chapleys a list of Presentation Templates grouped by the applied World	Tem.
- Preservation Templates by Work	Authoring Templates	This view displays a list of Authoring Templates.	
A shares Templates	Authoring Terralates by Warkfley	This view also lays a list of Templates grouped by the applied Worldford	
in Company respects by marche	Composent Library	This view eleptays a lat of Ubrary Components.	
Components in Backfilm	Components by Warkflow	This view displays a list of components grouped by the applied Worldlaw.	
w C Search Fules	Search Rules	This view clippings a fact of Search Koles.	
- Die Harausrent			
Contraction Management			
O Warkflew Maxagement ED Version Management			
C Warldfan Managamant			

Figure 13. IBM[®] Workplace Web Content Management[™] authoring features

You can use IBM[®] Workplace Web Content Management[™] content-publishing tools to manage content that is served through portlets within the portal server. Designated contributors and administrators can organize the content and design of pages in a Web site, framework and navigation of site content, and supporting content-management services such as edits and approvals, caching and staging services, and publication of Web content to the portal. IBM[®] Workplace Web Content Management[™] software includes support to author personalization rules and campaigns to target content to specific groups or users and to report on the content usage within your portal. The product also provides workflow approval options to manage content publishing to help you maintain access control over what content each user can see or change, and coordinates the approval and publishing process when the content is ready (see Figure 14).

WebSphere Portal			My Portal Administ	ration 🛃 Ed	it my profile ? Log o
		New Page Edit Pa	ge Assign Permission	Search:	9
Welcome Web Content Man	agement Jumpstart Perso	nalization My Workpla	ce My Work		My Favorites
Authoring Content Preview Press	Releases News Items				
Web Content Authoring					+ 7 - 1
📫 Web Content					
* New 60 Read / Edit 1 Delete	Preview Preview Apr	prove Workflow 🛹 Edit	Security		
Intranet Published+Version -	All Staff	db.			
			Showing 1 - 3 of 3	Filtered: 3	Page 1 of 1
😑 🗎 Content Library	Filter Filter	<u>Filter</u> Fi	lter	Filt	er
Content by Title	□ Name ~	Status D	ate Saved ~	Aut	ior ~
Content by Category	Company Picnic	• • • O	t 24, 2004 11:23:47	PM EDT	
Content by Workflow	🗹 🗎 Login	• • • O	t 24, 2004 11:25:05	PM EDT	
O All Staff Workflow O Intranet Workflow O Intranet Workflow O Intranet Workflow O Intranet V-Version Workflow O Site Administrators Expre O Site Administration Expre O Site Administration O Administration	D Notification for All s	staff ∞ø> O	:t 24, 2004 11:23:51	PM EDT SWy	att

Figure 14. IBM[®] Workplace Web Content Management[™] workflow and content-publishing approvals

Productivity components

WebSphere Portal also includes productivity components, portal-based content edit capabilities and conversion services. These productivity components can be accessed from WebSphere Portal Document Manager, IBM® Workplace Web Content Management[™] and the IBM Common PIM portlets. Productivity components function as embedded editors for rich text, spreadsheets and presentations, providing the most widely used content-editing features – without your having to install office-productivity software on every workstation. Instead, these editors enable users to create and edit document types from within their Web browsers, as shown in Figure 15.



Figure 15. Create, view and edit content in WebSphere Portal using productivity components.

Content from popular office-productivity products can be opened for edit from WebSphere Portal productivity components, and content generated by the editors can be converted to supported formats, including IBM Lotus SmartSuite[®], Microsoft Excel and Microsoft Word documents. And documentconversion services included with WebSphere Portal support view, index and search capabilities for over 250 file types.

Search

WebSphere Portal provides integrated Web-content indexing capabilities, as well as methods to categorize indexed content and an optional workflowapprovals process to manage publication of indexed content. WebSphere Portal provides two sets of search portlets. A document search and browse portlet can be deployed on a portal page to allow users to search within one indexed search collection. It also enables users to access advanced capabilities such as browse and search by optional applied taxonomy of indexed content, and the ability to conduct advanced searches using fielded search constraints, such as search by document type, author and date range. A search box is also provided in the portal interface, and includes sample themes for customization of appearance. Users can enter a search term in the search box, which navigates the user to the search-center portlet. This portlet enables centralized searches across WebSphere Portal content, including portlets and portal pages, WebSphere Portal Document Manager content, Web-indexed applications and external Web source sites. The embedded search service uses WebSphere Portal document-conversion services.

Besides the search capabilities available through document-conversion services, the WebSphere Portal built-in search engine is optimized to support full-text searching of small-to-midsize business content collections where precision is essential. It efficiently applies state-of-the-art search algorithms to produce high-quality search results. You can index the content, allowing users to search for content that is accessible through HTTP.

The search engine supports free-text queries, with query assistance and query word completion, and also supports wildcard and fielded search options. Search queries can also use advanced query operators (+ or -) to indicate keywords that must be or also must not be in the document. Users can also search for explicit phrases by enclosing them in double quotation marks. The search engine can search documents in virtually any language, and also supports synonyms and stop-word lists during query processing. Search results include document summaries, category information (if applied) and other standard attributes (date, URL, author and relevance ranking). See Figure 16 for an example of the taxonomy browse search feature.



Figure 16. Navigating taxonomy categories to search content using the document-search portlet

To prepare for a search, the search engine builds a full-text index from content it collects from the local portal site, document and Web site sources. The index function supports multiword and internationallanguage content indexing to avoid ambiguity and to help ensure high precision. You can compress these indexes and control their sizes to accommodate situations in which the size of an index needs to be limited. Administration portlets enable you to create, update and manage index parameters and optional categorization options (see Figure 17). Content-categorization options include classification to preestablished categories or a rules-based method to define content categorization filters to apply to indexed content. Administrators can choose to configure specific portlets provided with WebSphere Portal to view and edit the taxonomy characteristics before applying them to evaluate content that is indexed by the WebSphere Portal search engine.

ete a New Content Source -						
lection - C:\Index\T3 Co	ntent Source -					
wi source type: 💿 Web	site O Portal s	ite				
General Parameters	Advanc	ed Parameters	Schedulers	Filters	Security	Destination Categories
dvanced Parameters						
Number of parallel processe		S	*			
Default character encoding:		windows-1252				
Always use default characte	r encoding:					
Add all documents to collec	tion automaticall;					
Dbey Robot.txt						
Proxy Server:	Porti	8080				
Locks Fanger	Porte	1080				

Create Cancel

Figure 17. Configuring the search index

WebSphere Portal also integrates several other search technologies. Portlets using Lotus Extended Search and IBM WebSphere Information Integrator: OmniFind Edition can access and aggregate other search engines and indexes in a distributed fashion. If you need to offer heterogeneous search capabilities across a broad range of data, Web sites and indexed-content sources to complement the WebSphere Portal search engine embedded search services, you should consider using Lotus Extended Search (included with the WebSphere Portal Extend offering). If you need to provide enterprisescale index and search services across a broad range of Web, data and content sources, you should consider WebSphere Information Integrator: OmniFind software.

Lotus Extended Search

Lotus Extended Search provides distributed, heterogeneous searching across a broad range of IBM Lotus Domino, database and Internet sources to return aggregated, ranked results to a single interface (see Figure 18). The result is single point of access to a variety of data sources without requiring a new, central index. Lotus Extended Search software can search and retrieve documents from repositories that include IBM Lotus Notes, Lotus Team Workplace, IBM Lotus Domino Document Manager and IBM Lotus Domino Server Domain Index.

Done 🗹

Advanced Extended Search

Choose the mode for your search tab: Choose the mode for your search tab: C Advanced: all search parameters will be available C Basic: only the "Search for" field and "Build query" options will be available. The search will use the defaults specified below. C Change application name or server URL Set application name and Extended Search Server URL C Edit default settings for Advanced > Sources These settings will be used as default parameters for searches C Edit default settings for Advanced > Options These settings will be used as default parameters for searches D Delete and edit saved searches Remove or modify searches that you have saved

Done Done

Figure 18. Configuring the Lotus Extended Search portlet

Lotus Extended Search also searches external sources such as Microsoft Index Server and Microsoft Site Server, Microsoft SharePoint, WebSphere Portal search-engine indexes, LDAP technology-compliant directories, 18 popular Web search sites and news sites, commercial content providers, and relational databases such as IBM DB2[®], Oracle, Microsoft SQL Server and other Open Database Connectivity (ODBC) technology-compliant databases. Results can be ranked by relevancy from the source, across multiple data stores. Lotus Extended Search portlets provide basic and advanced search options that enable end users to select across supported sources and refine search criteria.

WebSphere Information Integrator: OmniFind

WebSphere Information Integrator: OmniFind, available separately, is designed to provide enterprise-scale index and search services across a broad range of Web, data and content sources. Supported sources include HTTP and HTTP Secure Sockets (HTTPS); news groups (using Network News Transfer Protocol [NNTP]); file systems; Lotus Domino databases; Microsoft Exchange public folders; IBM DB2 Content Manager, IBM DB2[®] Universal Database[™], IBM DB2 Universal Database for z/OS®, IBM Informix® and Oracle databases; and a data listener and API to facilitate integration with other content search sources. WebSphere Information Integrator: OmniFind includes sophisticated text-analysis and relevancy algorithms, and the ability to index millions of documents. This product also typically provides subsecond search-response times. Advanced search options include predefined link customizations, parametric and fielded search options, and content categorization and taxonomy management services. WebSphere Information Integrator: OmniFind also includes administrative portlets and search-server performance-monitoring features. If you require enterprise-scale index and search services, more-extensive search options and broader support of search sources than those supported with WebSphere Portal search-engine services, use WebSphere Information Integrator: OmniFind. Its migration utility enables you easily grow your search infrastructure from WebSphere Portal search-engine embedded services to more-scalable WebSphere Information Integrator.

Security

With the explosive growth of B2B and B2C Web applications, an on demand business needs to protect critical information assets. Service providers need similar protection when rehosting Web-based content and applications for their customers. Portal applications and resources are protected by:

- Managing user profiles (member services)
- Verifying user identity (authentication)
- Managing access to back-end applications (single signon)
- Enforcing access policies (authorization)

The next section highlights some of the security features that applications and portal administrators can use to better protect their portals' valuable information assets.

Member services

Centralized administration of user identities, credentials and permissions is desirable in many environments. WebSphere Portal includes facilities to define portal users and manage user-access rights. The user and group subsystem includes portlets that enable users to register and manage their own account information, administration portlets to manage user accounts and group information, and a repository that stores all the information about portal users (see Figure 19). The subsystem also provides services to create, read, update, and delete users or groups in the repository. User profile information includes general information such as a user's name and user ID, as well as preference information such as news topics of interest and preferred language. A user can be a member of one or more groups, and groups can contain other groups.



Figure 19. Self-enrollment page

The default user profile attributes are based on the inetOrgPerson schema, as shown in Figure 20, which is supported by most LDAP directories. The user repository can consist of multiple data sources. By default, the repository includes two data sources – a combination of a database and a directory server. The database can be any of the databases supported by WebSphere Portal. Any one of several LDAP directory products are supported, including Netscape (iPlanet) Directory Server, Microsoft Active Directory, Novell eDirectory, Lotus Domino and IBM Tivoli Directory Server.

```
<MemberServiceProperties>
  <Database ... DatasourceName="@DATA SOURCE@" />
 <Directory userRDNname="uid"
    userMemberSubsystemAttributeName="logonId"
    userObjectClass="top;inetOrgPerson"
    orgRDNname="dc"
    orgMemberSubsystemAttributeName="orgEntityName"
    orgObjectClass="top;domain"
    orgUnitRDNname="cn"
    orgUnitMemberSubsystemAttributeName="orgEntityName"
    orgUnitObjectClass="top; container"
    grpRDNname="cn"
    grpMemberSubsystemAttributeName="memberGroupName"
    grpObjectClass="top;groupOfUniqueNames"
    grpMembershipAttributeName="uniqueMember"
</MemberServiceProperties>
```

Figure 20. Mapping user profile data defined to LDAP schema

The *realm* concept, newly supported with WebSphere Portal, Version 5.1, provides a more-flexible method to define an individual user population for the virtual-portal feature. This concept enables physical user-registry systems to be abstracted. The resulting realms expose a distributed user population, for instance, identified in different trees of an LDAP structure, as a single coherent entity to the specific virtual portal instance. The mapping of a realm to a virtual portal defines the individual user population that can work with a specific virtual portal. Although it is possible to aggregate different user repositories into one realm, WebSphere Portal, Version 5.1 only supports aggregating different repository trees of one LDAP user registry. The configuration for the user repositories to be used, the realm setup, and the definitions of the user profile attributes and their mappings to LDAP object classes is handled in the member-management XML configuration files.

The mapping of user profile attributes to LDAP object classes is defined by using the wms.xml file. This file specifies the names of the various data repositories and how they are navigated to retrieve user and group information. You can configure these settings differently for each supported LDAP directory. If you want to use a directory that is not supported, you would need to set these values appropriately for that directory server. The attributeMap.xml file specifies the details of how each attribute is mapped to the LDAP directory or database. This mapping file also includes metadata about each attribute such as its data type, whether it is required, whether it can have multiple values and so on.

Administration

Administration of users and groups can be performed by users themselves (called *self-care*) or by portal administrators. The portal server includes portlets to register new users as well as administration portlets to update user and group information. You can easily modify the registration and self-care portlets to accommodate new attributes. You can simply switch to the configure mode of the portlet and modify the set of attributes. The enrollment servlet automatically stores the new data in the corresponding user attributes. The WebSphere Portal information center, available at **ibm.com**/ developerworks/websphere/zones/portal/proddoc.html, includes more information about customizing the implementation of the user repository, registration and self-care portlets, and data-validation classes.

Authentication

Authentication is the process of establishing a user's identity. Usually, the portal server uses the authentication services provided by WebSphere Application Server. You can also opt to use another authentication server (such as IBM Tivoli Access Manager WebSeal or Netegrity SiteMinder) that has a trusted association with the application server. WebSphere Portal software uses form-based authentication. This authentication method means that a user is prompted through an HTML form for the user ID and password for authentication when trying to access the portal. WebSphere Portal, Version 5.1 updates the login form provided with earlier releases with a new, easy-touse login portlet. The portal server requests the application server to validate the authentication information against an LDAP user registry. WebSphere Portal, Version 5.1 also now supports login using Secure Sockets Layer (SSL) client certificates.

WebSphere Application Server uses Lightweight Third Party Authentication (LTPA) as its authentication mechanism. When a user tries to access a protected resource, the application server intercepts the request and redirects the request to the login form, if form-based login is activated. This form posts the user ID and password to the portal, which triggers a Java Authentication and Authorization Service (JAAS) login for a certain JAAS login configuration against the application server to authenticate the user. If the user can be authenticated , the security context is established by building a JAAS subject, and an LPTA cookie is stored on the user's machine. The JAAS subject groups the authenticated user's security-related information in the form of principals (such as the groups the user is member of) and credentials (such as public key certificates).

If your system uses another vendor's authentication server, trust needs to be established between that proxy and WebSphere Application Server. This trust is accomplished using a Trust Association Interceptor (TAI) module, which converts security information specific to the authentication proxy into a format that can be handled by the application server. The supported authentication mechanism depends on the capabilities of the other vendor's product. When a user tries to access the portal, the authentication proxy from the other vendor's product intercepts the request and challenges the user to authenticate. After a successful login, the original user request, along with other security information in the request header, is passed to the application server. The format and content of this information is vendor-specific. WebSphere Application Server uses the TAI module (specific to the other vendor's product) to extract the necessary security information from the request header. TAI modules for Tivoli Access Manager and Netegrity SiteMinder are packaged with the portal server (all editions). The WebSphere Application Server information center, available at **ibm.com**/software/webservers/appserv/was/ library/, includes information about creating custom TAI modules for other vendors' reverse-proxy servers.

Many portlets need to access remote applications that require some form of user authentication. For accessing applications outside the portal's realm, WebSphere Portal provides a credential vault service that portlets can use to store user IDs and passwords (or other credentials) for a user login to an application (see Figure 21). Portlets can use these services on behalf of the user to access remote systems. The credential vault supports either local database storage or Tivoli Access Manager for secure storage and retrieval of credentials.

WebSphere Portal	My Portal Administration	Edit my profile ?	Log out
	Credential Vault	111	2 - 0
Portal User Interface	Vaults (number of vault segments):		
Portlets	Resources within selected vault:		
Access	None		
Users and Groups Resource Permissions	Create a new vault segment		
User and Group Permissions Credential Vault	Vault segment name:		
Portal Settings	Vault segment description:		
Portal Analysis	OK Cancel		

Figure 21. Setting up the credential vault

Portlets access credentials by obtaining a CredentialVaultPortletService object and calling its getCredential method. The returned credential includes two options:

- It can use passwords or keys from a passive credential, passing them in applicationspecific calls. Portlets that use passive credentials need to extract the secret out of the credential and do all the authentication communication with the back-end application.
- It can call the authenticate method of an active credential. Active credential objects hide the credential's secret from the portlet, with no way to extract it from the credential. Active credentials provide other methods to perform the authentication.

The latter option allows portlets to trigger authentication to remote servers using basic authentication, SSL client authentication, digest authentication or LTPA without knowing the credential values. Using active credentials means that the portal authenticates on behalf of the portlet, and the portlet can simply use the open connection. Some remote applications use form-based logins and store cookies during the login-form processing. You can use the HttpFormBasedCredential object to handle these form-based logins and to store all the cookies that are returned as a result. For subsequent calls, the portlet can then ask the credential for an authenticated connection. This provides an HTTP connection with these cookies already set in the header, enabling portlets to maintain persistent, secure back-end connections with active credentials. Although using the active-credentials option might not be possible in all cases, it is the preferred technique. For highly secure transmission of data, portlets can request a secure session (using HTTPS) for accessing Web applications.

WebSphere Portal uses the JAAS architecture. JAAS provides a means to authenticate subjects and to provide fine-grained access control. JAAS is part of the standard Java security model; it gives applications independence from the underlying authentication and authorization mechanisms being used. In a distributed J2EE environment, portlets can use the JAAS API to access JAAS technology-enabled back-end applications.

WebSphere Portal also supports enablement of Java 2 Standard Edition (J2SE) security within the WebSphere Portal environment. J2SE provides extended access-control mechanisms that increase overall system integrity by checking for permissions before allowing access to certain protected system resources. J2SE security allows you to set up individual policy files that control the privileges assigned to individual code sources, including access to specific Java Virtual Machine (JVM) environments, server nodes, libraries and applications.

> The WebSphere Portal, Version 5.1 installation procedure grants all code shipping with WebSphere Portal full access to system resources. All other code running within the portal environment runs with permissions granted according to the WebSphere Java 2 Platform security setup. If a portlet needs other permissions to operate correctly (such as to write report data to the file system), a policy file can be inserted into the corresponding WAR file. The administrator should check that the policy file adheres to the system's security policy, and if necessary, modify the permissions before installing the portlet.

Single signon

Having to sign on multiple times just to access different portal applications can frustrate users and slow their progress. Users want to be able to sign on only once and have access to the different parts of the portal server with the same consistent user credentials. To address this need, WebSphere Portal delivers comprehensive single-signon support by using WebSphere Application Server and authentication proxies. This means that WebSphere Portal delivers the capabilities to enable users to log on only once to gain access to all the enterprise applications you have installed within the single-signon realm.

WebSphere Application Server uses LTPA tokens to provide single-signon capabilities. When a user is authenticated, the portal server creates an LTPA single-signon cookie containing the authenticated user credential. This encrypted cookie conforms to the format used by WebSphere Application Server, and all application servers in the shared domain can decrypt this cookie if they all have the same cipher key. Through the single-signon cookie, all servers in the cluster can access the user's credentials without more prompting, resulting in a seamless access experience for the user. To benefit from the LTPA single sign-on method, users must have their Web browsers set to support cookies and enable support for session cookies.
Authorization

After determining the user's identity, the portal server consults locally cached access-control lists to determine which pages and portlets a user has permission to access. WebSphere Portal enforces access control to portal assets, including portlets, pages and user groups. The portal administration database stores the access control lists. You can also manage access control for specific resources in an external security manager, such as Tivoli Access Manager or Netegrity SiteMinder.

Access permissions are maintained using the access-control administration portlet (see Figure 22 and Figure 23). You can use this portlet to assign roles to individual users or to groups of users for specific portlets, pages or documents. Roles are permission sets, such as the ability to view and update the corresponding item. Users can also delegate the permissions they hold to other users. When a role is assigned to a user or a group on a container (such as a page that contains portlets or other pages, or a folder that contains other folders or documents), that role is inherited downward through the hierarchy unless it is specifically blocked. This makes it easier to manage access within a document library or an area of the portal.

Resource Permissions		/// * /?·
ages		
earch		
Search on: Title contains Search for:		
Search	o which you want to assign access.	
Search lick the Assign Access icon for the resource to oot > <u>Content Root</u> > <u>My Portal</u> > Human Ro	o which you want to assign access. esources Showing 1 - 4 of 4	Page 1 of 1
Search ick the Assign Access icon for the resource to bot > <u>Content Root</u> > <u>My Portal</u> > Human Ro age Title	o which you want to assign access. esources Shoving 1 - 4 of 4 Assign Access	Page 1 of 1
Search ick the Assign Access icon for the resource to bot > <u>Content Root</u> > <u>My Portal</u> > Human Ro age Title ealth Care	o which you want to assign access. asources Showing 1 - 4 of 4 Assign Access	Page 1 of 1
Search ick the Assign Access icon for the resource to boot > <u>Content Root</u> > <u>My Portal</u> > Human Ro age Title ealth Care areer Services	o which you want to assign access. asources Showing 1 - 4 of 4 Assign Access N N	Page 1 of 1
Search ick the Assign Access icon for the resource to bot > Content Root > My Portal > Human Ro age Title ealth Care arear Services acation	e which you want to assign access. asources Shoving 1 - 4 of 4 Assign Access	Page 1 of 1
Search lick the Assign Access icon for the resource to oot > <u>Content Root</u> > <u>My Portal</u> > Human Ro lage Title lealth Care lareer Services lareer Services lacation letirement Planning	e which you want to assign access. asources Showing 1 - 4 of 4 Assign Access P A P A P A P	Page 1 of 1

Figure 22. Managing access rights in the portal

Assign Access for: Pages> Click the Edit Role icon to vie	Health Care w, add or delete members.			
			Showing 1 - 7 of 7	Page 1 of 1
Roles	Allow Propagation	Allow Inheritance		Edit Role
Administrator	1	1		1
Security Administrator	1	1		1
Delegator		N		1
Manager	V	N		1
Editor	V	v		1
Privileged User	v	N		1
User	2	v		1
			Showing 1 - 7 of 7	Page 1 of 1

Ok Cancel

Figure 23. Managing access rights in the portal

Granting view access to a page or place means that other users can see pages and places when they log in. Granting view access to a portlet means that users can add it to their pages when they customize their portal experiences. Granting *edit access* means that a user can set the portlet settings or change the contents of a page. *Manager access* means that a user can perform view and edit operations, and can delete the portlet or page.

Granting view access to administration portlets is an effective way to delegate certain administrative tasks that are not protected by portal access control to other portal users. Those users can simply add the administration portlets to their personal pages and then perform whatever task the portlet is designed to do. As a result, users do not have to be granted all the administrative privileges or be added to the portal administrator's group. Their administrative abilities are limited to only those tasks covered by the authorized portlets.

Personalizing the portal

Optimizing each user's portal experience is one of the primary goals of WebSphere Portal. To this end, WebSphere Portal provides user and administrative interfaces to customize the content of portal pages, as well as the look and layout of the pages (see Figure 24). With these tools, users can personalize their pages by selecting portlets and changing the settings of each one to suit their specific roles or work habits. Users can also change the page layout and the color scheme (if the administrator enables this option).



Figure 24. Portal page elements

Users can have one or more personalized pages, navigating to each one from the home page. Pages are arranged in a hierarchical manner with virtually any level of depth. You can assign each page its own color themes, skins and page layouts. *Themes* define the fonts, colors, spacing and other visual elements, and consist of cascading style sheets, JSP files and images. *Skins* are decorations and controls placed around portlets, such as title bars, borders and shadows. At each level of the page hierarchy, the lower pages can inherit the themes and skins from the page above them or can override one or both. Because each section can have a completely different look, you can use sections of the site to create the appearance of different sites running on one portal server.

Each personalized page can have a different set of portlets. These portlets can be selected by end users or by administrators, depending on their access rights for the page. Administrators can specify that certain portlets are required, so that end users cannot remove or rearrange them. Pages can also be rearranged to get a different navigation order for each user or group of users, when permitted by the administrator.

For end users, the portal provides a quick-customizer interface to add and rearrange portlets (see Figure 25). This interface is accessed by clicking the edit layout link at the top of the page you want to customize. Then it is just a matter of clicking the *add content* button to add new portlets.

				C		inter and a
Search the web with Lycos UBM Business Transf	ormation 🛛 👔 IBM Internal H	elp 🐮 IBM Standard So	rtware Installer	Media	Customize Links	Free Hotmail
Sphere Portal			11/	~		f Log o
ntent Appearance Locks Wires						
Layout						
Edit Layout and Content allows you to add and a	rrange portlets, columns	and rows. You can also	remove portlets, colu	imns and rows	. Modifications or	our as you make
m,						
ge title: Welcome						
Welcome to WebSphere Portal		My Weather		1 My News	F	
bout WebSphere Portal	A 1 1 3	My Stocks	2 A 4 F	Beekm	arks	
+ Add portlets		+ Add portlets		+ Add	portlets	
Dope			-	Edit propert	ins Dal	ete this name
L'ANNE I				curc property	Jes Der	ete uns page

Figure 25. Quick-customizer interface

If you want to rearrange portlets on the page or delete portlets, you can do that inline by turning the page editing tools on and off and selecting the direction icons or delete icon associated with each portlet (see Figure 26).

Messburge Loust		Nev Page Edit Page
Documents Welcome Content Publishing Your Your Co News More News	Co Financial Click To Action Human Resources	M
Top News 🕨 💌 🗊 🗸 🗕 🗖	Breaking news 4 🕨 🐨 🗊 / 🗕 🗆	Popular Articles
Earnings Soarl Alaskan Adventure Vacations Take Offit Alaskan Adventure Vacations Take Offit Cal Legitlature parties 20% Tax Cut Bate Running Rampant in Hollywood Manzions Calto Taudens Emissions Restrictions Minimize Need Help2	Earlings Boart The earlings for the last quarter are vay up. Alskan Adjershure Vastenin Take Offil The Great White Horh is a Great Deal Escal Summer Gaar Price Hikes Expect to get gauged at the Origination War of Dangers of Skin Cancer Skin Cancer is a real Horad Horad Skin Adject Have England Snowstorms are Coming Head Help2	Earning: Soat Alarkan Adventure Vacation: Take Alarkan Adventure Vacation: Take CA Legislature passes 20% Tak. CV Rate Running Rampath in Hollwoo CA to Toughan Emission Restricts Expect Ourport of Skin Crab Rasen Uson Us Expect Advine Delays in Roston, Re- Read Heig2
rourCo Financial My Profile Portlet 🔹 🕨 🔺 🗊 🖉 🗕 🗆	YourCo Financial Job Posting Portlet	YourCo Financial My Accounts
YourCo Financial cares about its customers. We are delighted to offer you the opportunity to manage your accounts on-line. This time saving feature is worth spending the few minutes of signing up and logging on. The great part is its free and a set and easy to uris. Come, give it a try, Just edit your profile and add your accounts. Once you have signed up, come back here to update your profile or add, delete, or update your <const. YourCo makes it &BaY for YOUI After all, we are Your < Co.</const. 	Need a job? You've come to the right place. YourCo is always looking to hire talented, hardvorking folks who love to teat the outsmer like they are kings. Come, peruse the list of jobs and join Team YourCo! Keywords: Post Date:	YourCo Financial believes in Custome provide fast, reliable service to you, t Without you, would we be but just an Alas! To keep you satisfied, we provi viewing for you to be able to keep tr finances, day or night. YourCo make: After all, we are Your - Co.
Edit Your Profile Add Another Account	Find Job	Please Edit Your Profile Need Help?
Update Your Account Delete Your Account	Need Help?	

Figure 26. Portlet display customization

A more-advanced page customizer is available for administrators, where the basic structure of a page is defined. Page layouts are fully dynamic. You have the ability to create any arrangement of rows and columns, or to split them to create new rows and columns. Columns can have a fixed size, specified in pixels or in a percentage of the overall page size, which you can adjust by using the width controls. To place portlets on the page, you can click the add content button and search for a portlet you want to add to the page, and use page layout controls to customize placement of portlets to pages.

Personalization

WebSphere Portal offerings include the personalization engine, which enables you to target content to specific users in support of your portal's business goals. The WebSphere Portal personalization component provides facilities that allow subject-matter experts to select content suited to the unique needs and interests of each site visitor. These Web-based tools help companies quickly and easily leverage content created by line-of-business (LOB) users and subject-matter experts.

A personalization solution involves three basic components:

- A user profile, which provides information about users of the site, including user attributes
- A content model, which defines attributes about the content, such as product descriptions, articles and other information
- Matching technology, which includes engines that match users to the right content and also provides filtering, rules or recommendation engines or combinations of all three

The WebSphere Portal personalization engine and WebSphere Portal share a common user profile, a common content model and the JSR 170 content repository. This model is based on the WebSphere resource framework interfaces classes. As a result, personalization rules can easily be added to portlets to select portal content from IBM[®] Workplace Web Content Management[™] and WebSphere Portal Document Manager and target it to the portal's registered users. A set of wizards is included with Rational Application Developer to access Structured Query Language (SQL) or LDAP data. The basic steps associated with personalization involve classifying site visitors into segments, and then targeting relevant content to each segment. Business experts create the rules for classifying users and selecting content, using Webbased tools (see Figure 27).

IBM WebSphere Portal - Microsoft	Internet Explorer		-
e <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools	Help		
VebSphere Portal		My Portal Administra	ation 🛧 Edit my profile ? Log
	New Page Edit Page	Assign Permissions 8	iearch:
Welcome My Workplace	Documents Personalization My Finance	≥s My Work	My Favorites
Workspace Personalized List	Workspace publish target		
ersonalization Navigator			113 -
* New -	🗊 Delete More Actions 👻	Select View:	All Objects
rowsing Workspace 🖻			Page 1 of 1
Workspace	* <u>Name</u>	Type Author	Last Modified
PznDemo	🗹 📴 Get 3 Promotions about IRAs	Rule	March 25, 2005, 04:22:52 PM
FrontPage	Get All Products	Rule	March 25, 2005, 04:24:00 PM
Miscellaneous	Get All Promotions	Rule	March 25, 2005, 04:25:14 PM
Offers Campaign	Get Details of Product Manufacturer	Rule	March 25, 2005, 04:26:29 PM
A Carrices Page	Get Early Promotions	Rule wpsadmin	March 25, 2005, 04:27:42 PM
CE Tax Season	Get Medium-Priced Products	Rule	March 25, 2005, 04:28:56 PM
TaxDay Campaign	Get Products By Customer Profile	Rule wpsadmin	March 25, 2005, 04:30:12 PM
	Get Tax Season Promotions	Rule	March 25, 2005, 04:31:28 PM
rsonalization Editor			+ 1 ? -
View Rule Preview Document 1	Info		4
Get 3 Promotions about IF Located in <u>PanDemo/Partne</u>	RÁS	Last /	Modified March 25, 2005, 04:22:52 /
Description Action to be used i Output Type pzndemo.resource Collection Type PznDemo/Promo	in Tax Season Campaign s.Promotions notions		
Nume sype Select Content Select content whose PznDemo/Promotions order randomly show 3 items	neadline includes IRA		
Edit			
			Takawa ak

Figure 27. Creating business rules for personalization

The WebSphere Portal personalization recommendation engine provides collaborative filtering capabilities. Collaborative filtering uses statistical techniques to identify groups of users with similar interests or behaviors. Inferences can be made about what a particular user might be interested in, based on the interests of other members of the group.

The WebSphere Portal personalization engine also includes campaignmanagement tools. Campaigns are sets of business rules that work together to accomplish a business objective (see Figure 28). For example, a human resources (HR) manager might want to run a campaign to encourage employees to enroll in a stock purchase plan. The HR manager would define a set of rules as shown to accomplish this business objective. Campaigns have start and stop dates and times and can be e-mail- and Web-page-based. Several campaigns can run simultaneously and can be prioritized.

Land							
nis @Sarch the Web web yeb iyos @1844 Business Transformation @1844 Internal Heb @1844 Standard Software Installer @Had @Customes Links @Free Hotons Excitation Partial Administration @ Edit may prefix @ Hey Partial Administration @ Hey Partial Administration @ Hey Partial Administration @ Earth Mey Work, Design Mey Partial Administration @ Hey Partial Addinistration @ Hey Partial Administration @ Hey Partial Administration @ Partial Addinistration @ Partial Addinistration @ Partial Addinistration @ Partial Addinist @ Partial Addinistic @ Partial Addinist @ Part	⊨Back • → • 🕑 🔄 🔂 🕼 Search 💽 Favorites 🐨	ieda 🎯 🖪- (• 🗹	- 🖻			
Inter Prod Inter Prod Inter Prod I	inits 👌 Search the Web with Lycos 🌒 IBM Business Transformatio	n 🕘 18M Internal	Help 🧃	🕽 IBM Standard Software Installer 🛛 🤅	🗋 Mail 🗋 Media 🧧	Customize Links	Free Hotmail
Here Para Idit Para Arman Permittenan Searchi Here Campaign Workspace Personalizadi Litte Personalization Navigator Import Import Import Import Delete More Actions + Select View: Campaign Import Delete Nore Actions + Select View: Campaign Import Delete Dete Tr.2004 to Dec 18, 2005 Import Second Top level compasion 2 Import Second Top level compasion Last Modified December 16, 2004, 06, 17, 33 Import Second Top level Compasion Last Modified December 16, 2004, 06, 17, 34 Import Second Top level Compasion Last Modified December 16, 2004, 06, 17, 34 Import Second Top level Compasion Last Modified December 16, 2004, 06, 17, 34 Import Second Top level Compasion Last Modified December 16, 2004, 06, 17, 34 Import Second Top level Compasion Last Modified December 16, 2004, 06, 10	WebSphere Portal	11-		The same of the sa	My Portal Adminis	tration 🕹 Edit n	ny profile ? Log
Image: Second Tap level cmapaign Document Personalization My Work Design My Facontez Workspace Personalization Reversition Reversitio				Nev Page Edit Page	ssign Permissions	Search:	9
Wenh pace Personalized huits Personalized huiving terr Personalized huiving terr Personalized huiving terr Personalized huiving terr Personalized huiving terr Personalized hui better Personalized hui better Person	Welcome My Workplace Documents Person	alization My Wo	rk De	sign		M	y Favorites
Rest Campaign Import Import Delete More Actions + Select View: Campaign * Campaign Priority Selt Date Renow Author Last Soldfield * Campaign Delete More Actions + Select View: Campaign Page 1 of * Campaign Delete Priority Selt Date Renow Author Last Soldfield * Campaign Delete 1 100 Del 17, 2004 to Dec 18, 2005 up radmin December 16, 2004, 06:17:31 * Campaign 2 100 Dec 16, 2004 to Dec 18, 2005 up radmin December 16, 2004, 06:17:31 * Campaign Campaign December 16, 2004 to Dec 18, 2005 up radmin December 16, 2004, 06:17:31 * Second Top level compaign Last Modified December 16, 2004, 06:07 More representation *	Workspace Personalized List						4 2 3 3
Open Hard Campaign Delete More Addon* Select Veru Campaign * Campaign for Data Promity Selet Data Rames Author Last Modified * Campaign for Data 1 100 Dec 17, 2004 to Dec 18, 2005 upsadmin December 16, 2004, 04:23:34 * G Sampaign for Data 1 100 Dec 16, 2004 to Dec 18, 2005 upsadmin December 16, 2004, 04:17:34 * G Sampaign for Data 2 100 Dec 16, 2004 to Dec 18, 2005 upsadmin December 16, 2004, 04:17:34 * g Sampaign for Data 2 100 Dec 16, 2004 to Dec 18, 2005 upsadmin December 16, 2004, 06:17:34 * g Sampaign for Data 2 100 Dec 16, 2004 to Dec 18, 2005 upsadmin December 16, 2004, 06:17:34 * g Sampaign for Data 2 100 Dec 16, 2004 to Dec 18, 2005 upsadmin December 16, 2004, 06:17:34 * g Sampaign for Data 2 100 Dec 16, 2004 to Dec 18, 2005 upsadmin Upsadmin * g Sampaign for Data 2 100 Dec 16, 2004 to Dec 18, 2005 upsadmin Upsadmin * g Sampaign for Data * * * * * * * g Sampaign for Data * * * * * * * g Sampaign for Da	Personalization Havigator						1 x t =
Presented Presently Image: Information Image: Ima	Mew Campaign Import Delete	More Action:			Select View	1 Campaigns	2
Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2004, 06:17:34 Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2004, 06:07:00 PM Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2004, 06:07:00 PM Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2004, 06:07:00 PM Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2004, 06:07:00 PM Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Image: Second Top Level Cmapsign Lost Modified December 16, 2005, 06:00:00 PM	Campaign	Priority	Solit	Date Range	Author	Last Modified	Page 1 of 1
Image: Second Top level emassion 2 100 Dec 16, 2004 to Dec 18, 2000 uprodmin December 16, 2004, 06:17:34 (1 relected) Image: Second Top level emassion Image: Second Top level emapsion <	Campaign for Docs	1	100	Dec 17, 2004 to Dec 18, 2005	vpsadmin	December 16, 2	004, 04:23:36 PM
(1 releded) Fersonalization Editor Edit Campaign Last Modified Decamber 15, 2004, 06:101:00 PM Ind Date Decamber 16, 2005, 06:100:00 PM Priority 2 Split 100 Find Date Decamber 16, 2005, 06:100:00 PM Priority 2 Split 100 Find Date Decamber 16, 2005, 06:100:00 PM Priority 2 Split 100 Find Date Decamber 16, 2005, 06:100:00 PM Find Date Decamber 16, 2005, 0	C C Second Top level cmapping	2	100	Dec 16, 2004 to Dec 18, 2005	upradmin	December 16 2	004 06-17-39 PM
(1 selected) ersonalization Editor 2 2 2 Edit Campaign Devel emapaign Last Modified December 16, 2005, 06:107 Located in Campaign Last Modified December 16, 2005, 06:00:00 PM End Date December 16, 2005, 06:00:00 PM End Date December 18, 2005, 06:00:00 PM End Date December 18, 2005, 06:00:00 PM End Date December 18, 2005, 06:00:00 PM							
(1 selected) Personalization Editor Personalization Personali							
Personalization Editor / / / ? Edit Campaign Decument Infe Second Top level cmapaign Last Modified December 16, 2004, 06:17 Locate in Campaign Control Lavel Folder vprad Description None Start Date December 16, 2004, 06:00:00 PM End Date December 10, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Priority 2 Split 100	(d selected)						
Edit Campaign Last Modified December 16, 2004, 06, 17 Caste d in Casted in Casted in Casted Folder Last Modified December 16, 2004, 06, 17 Description More Start Date December 16, 2004, 06, 00 PM End Date December 16, 2005, 06,00,00 PM Fordate December 10, 2005, 06,00,00 PM Split 10	(A selected)						+12-
Second Top level cmapaign Last Modified December 15, 2004, 06:17 Located in December 16, 2004, 06:07 Pecergbian Kine End Date December 10, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Find Date December 10, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Split 10	(a selecced)						and the state of the second
Located in in a scond Top Lavel Folder wprad Description Nose Start Date Decomber 16, 2004, 06:00:00 PM End Date December 10, 2005, 06:00:00 PM PM Privative 2 Split 100	(4 selected) Personalization Editor Edit Campaign Document Info						4
Description Alone Start Date December 16, 2004, 06:00:00 PM End Date December 19, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Priority 2 Split 10	(I selecce) Personalization EditorEdit Campaign Document Info @ Second Top level cmapaign				Last Mo	dified December 1	6, 2004, 06:17:38 F
Start Date December 16, 2004, 06:00:00 PM End Date December 10, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Priority 2 Split 10:0	La Selected) Personalization Editor _Edit Campaign Document Info @ Second Top level cmapaign Located in ⊇ Second Top Level Folder				Last Mo	dified December 1	6, 2004, 06:17:38 F vpsadmin
End Date December 10, 2005, 06:00:00 FM Priority 2 Split 100	It Seecces) Personalication Editor Edit Campaign Document Infe Costed in Cascond Top Level Folder Description Kose				Last Mo	dified December 1	6, 2004, 05:17:38 F vpsadmin
spite 100	(2 Second Top level cmapaign Edd campaign Second Top level cmapaign Located in Second Top Level Folder Description Kone Start Date Describer 16, 2004, 06:00:00 PM				Læst Mo	dified December 1	6, 2004, 06: 17: 38 F vpsadmin
	In Sector In Sector				Last Mo	dified December 1	6, 2004, 06: 17:38 F vpsadmin
	It served Fersonalization Editor Edit Campaign Document Info Second Top level cmapaign Located in Second Top Level Felder Description More Start Date December 16, 2004, 06:00:00 PM Priority 2 Split 100				Læst Mo	dified December 1	6, 2004, 06: 17:38 F vpsadmin
Edit	(a Second Editor [dd campaign [dd campaign [dd campaign [courset in] Second Too Level Folder Description Kos Start Date Describer 16, 2004, 06:00:00 PM Forder Spit 100				Last Mo	älfied December 1	6, 2004, 06: 17:38 F vpsadmin
	strendization stronalization Editor Edit Cempaign Located in Sacond Top Level Endger Description Avec Saturt Date December 19, 2005, 06:00:00 PM End Data Decomber 19, 2005, 06:00:00 PM Povorty 2 Split 100 Edit				Last Mo	dified December 3	6, 2004, 06: 17:38 vpsadmir

Figure 28. Setting up campaign parameters

Implicit profiling services can collect real-time information about site visitor actions and then construct personalization business rules using this data. Implicit profiling tracks the areas of a site where a user is most active to determine the user's interests. For example, if a user clicks articles about football, it is possible to determine that he is interested in sports, even if he did not explicitly indicate this interest when registering at the portal. The personalization rules and campaigns are stored in the WebSphere Portal Java Content Repository (JCR) store, and you can write rules to personalize the WebSphere Portal Document Manager or IBM[®] Workplace Web Content Management[™] content right out of the box (in other words, without developing your own resource collections).

To analyze the effectiveness of the site and its personalization strategies, the server provides a logging framework that can be enabled using WebSphere Portal administrative services. These logs can be analyzed by Tivoli Web Site Analyzer, included with IBM WebSphere Portal Extend. Tivoli Web Site Analyzer can then create reports for the portal's business owner. This helps your company measure the effectiveness of the business rules and campaigns in achieving their objectives. Personalization rules and campaigns are stored in the Java content repository, which enable you to, out of the box, write rules to personalize JCR content.

Cascading authorization for portal customizations

Many companies need to build portals that accommodate the needs of both a central organization as well as regional and local communities of users. For example, you might want to have top-level design decisions made centrally, such as the visual elements and basic page layouts that reflect corporate image and brand identity. Divisions or other organizational units might need the ability to add their own pages and content, or perhaps even subdivide areas of the common pages.

WebSphere Portal supports the needs of companies that want to cascade portal definitions across the organization using derived pages. Top-level administrators define base pages, and then permit subordinate administrators to further refine the page layouts and content to meet their individual needs. The refinement process can continue for any number of levels, until it finally reaches users (see Figure 29). If permitted, end users can customize their own pages by selecting and placing portlets and by changing portlet settings. To compute the page that a user finally sees, the portal server merges the page fragments defined by each successive refinement.



Figure 29. WebSphere Portal supports delegated administration of portlets and pages.

Administrators at different levels of your organization can lock the layout or content of any area of the page. For example, locking the placement of portlets means that users cannot move them or remove them from their pages. As a result, a higher-level administrator can set up the basic structure of the page, and fix certain portions or leave others open to modification by other administrators or by end users. Lower-level administrators cannot override any restrictions imposed by higher-level administrators. This capability means that your company can achieve both horizontal administration (across the company, business segments, locations and users) and vertical administration, where administrators provide content dedicated for a specific page. Using page locks with WebSphere Portal access-control features, administrators can determine which content is:

- Mandatory. Users cannot delete the content from their pages.
- Recommended. The content is placed on the page initially, but users can delete it.
- Optional. The content is not placed on the page, but is available for users to add it.
- Forbidden. Users cannot see this content at all.

Skins and themes

The portal server uses a system of JSP templates, cascading style sheets (CSSs) and images to define the look of the portal pages. You can modify these to control any of the visual aspects of the portal, perhaps to add company-specific brand elements, or to achieve a different color scheme and visual style. The system for defining color themes and portal skins has been enhanced to support multiple skins per theme, other branding elements, navigation styles and dynamic, browser-independent cascading style sheets (see Figure 30).

WebSphere Portal	? Log out
Properties	****
Edit label: Welcome	
Title:	
Welcome	
Theme:	
Inherit Parent Theme 💽 60	
Advanced options	
This page supports (at least one must be selected):	
WML CHTML CHTML	
I want to set titles and descriptions.	

Figure 30. Setting themes and skins

Skins and themes can now be applied to each page rather than being restricted to having only one for the overall portal. Different skins can be applied individually to portlets, so that the portal look can be fine-tuned to meet any needs (see Figure 31 and Figure 32).

earance portlet			
iop Nevs Skin: Theme default GurCo Financial My Profile Portlet Skin: Theme default	Breaking nevs Skin: Theme default Theme defa	Popular Articles Skin; Theme default YourCo Financial My Aco Skin; Theme default	eunts
Done	Comer - High Performance	Edit properties	Delete this page





Figure 32. Managing themes and skins

All of the visual elements of the portal, including the masthead, the navigation areas, graphics, portlet title areas and style sheets can be changed to give the portal a custom look, as shown in the example in Figure 33. Standard file formats, such as JPEG, GIF, CSS and JSP files are used to define the look and layout of the portal. If you examine the structure of the portal server's installation folder, you notice folders named *skins* and *themes*, with folders named *html, wml* and *chtml* within them. These folders contain most of the files used to define the basic structure of the portal home page, its color schemes and portlet decorations. You can make copies of these folders and modify the contents to achieve the visual image that your company needs. The theme administration portlet registers the new files.



Figure 33. Customizing branding and appearance of your portal using the themes and skins included in WebSphere Portal

Navigation

WebSphere Portal navigation capabilities have been improved significantly. Now, instead of having a simple page list for each place, WebSphere Portal makes it possible to create very complex navigation trees, with both page links and links to external URLs shown in the navigation area (see Figure 34 and Figure 35). You can create labels that logically group certain navigation elements, with more links indented beneath these labels.

Title contains	-
Search for:	_



Content Root 🕴 My Portal 🎙 Human Resources 🎙 Health Care 🗎 🖉 🅭 🗊

Pages in Health Care Add, Edit, Delete, and Reorder pages

	Showing 1 - 4 of 4 Page 1 of 1
Title	Status
Dental	Active 🔽 🗎 🖉 🖻
Medical	Active 🔺 🔽 🛅 🖉 🆻
Long Term Disability	Active 🔺 💌 🖻 🖉 🆻
Retirement Health Benefits	Active 🔺 🗎 🖉 🌶
	Showing 1 - 4 of 4 Page 1 of 1





Figure 35. Page-navigation view

WebSphere Portal release builder

WebSphere Portal, Version 5.1 includes a configuration-management process, called a *release builder*, that enables you to efficiently track and apply changes to new applications from staging to production portal servers. Using the WebSphere Portal release builder, you can export configuration entity modifications to an XML file, which tracks entities that were changed, added or removed, and then applies the differences to your production environment. The result improves the ability to keep staging and production systems synchronized as updates are applied to the production portal server.

Virtual portals

WebSphere Portal facilitates the efficient usage of hardware resources by enabling your organization to create multiple portals that share the same WebSphere Portal software and hardware implementation (see Figure 36). You can create and manage varying business requirements and constituent audiences by creating and managing more virtual portals without running more WebSphere Portal installations. For example, as a service provider, you can provide different portal services for multiple customers and their users.



Figure 36. Multisite implementation using virtual portals

> WebSphere Portal, Version 5.1 provides new specific administration portlets that enable the setup of new virtual portals and management of existing ones. A virtual portal is accessed through a specific URL mapping, associated with that virtual portal. Resources for each virtual portal are separated using WebSphere Portal access control, including portal configuration and page hierarchy, user populations, administration and anonymous pages. Delegation of independent WebSphere Portal access-control management within virtual portals is also supported. To learn more about virtual portals, visit the WebSphere Portal, Version 5.1 information center at **ibm.com**/ developerworks/websphere/zones/portal/proddoc.html.

Universal access

This white paper previously discussed WebSphere Portal support for international use. The entire system of page templates, themes, skins and portlet rendering is fully enabled for internationalization (including double-byte and bidirectional languages) and for accessibility to people with disabilities (see Figure 37). The portal server generates markup that complies with the American Disability Act (ADA) as defined in "Section 508 Web Accessibility Standards" and meets the guidelines of the Worldwide Web Consortium (W3C) Web Accessibility Initiative.

For globally accessible portals, the portal server searches for and selects the correct JSP based on the target browser, and the target browser's settings for language and country. To enable a portlet for language selection, its JSP files are packaged using the following directory structure:

WAR/markup_type/language/country/variant/jspname.jsp

WebSphere Portal searches for the JSP for a portal from the most specific to the least specific, as in the following example:

1. /html/en/US/IE/portletJSP.jsp 2. /html/en/US/portletJSP.jsp 3. /html/en/portletJSP.jsp 4. /html/portletJSP.jsp 5. /en/US/IE/portletJSP.jsp 6. /en/US/portletJSP.jsp 7. /en/portletJSP.jsp 8. /portletJSP.jsp Another good technique for handling translation issues is to use the portal server's JSP tag library. It includes a tag for identifying and separating translatable text, so you don't have to create and maintain separate JSP files for each language. Using this technique, you could create one JSP view, tagged like this:

<H2><wps:text key="heading.hello" bundle="mystrings"/></H2>

When this page is processed, the strings are substituted using standard Java resource bundles.



Figure 37. Portlets in many languages

For portals that need to support many languages, or for portals that include rapidly changing portal content, IBM WebSphere Translation Server, included with WebSphere Portal, offers automatic translation technology. This technology is useful because it supports either real-time or offline translation of human languages. WebSphere Translation Server provides quick, inexpensive, convenient text translations that communicate at a minimum the text's essence whenever a professional translation is not feasible because of availability, time or cost. Dictionaries can be tuned so that idiomatic expressions and specialized terminology are interpreted correctly. WebSphere Translation Server also supports bidirectional translation of content between English and French, Italian, German, Spanish, Japanese and Chinese (simplified and traditional). Unidirectional translation of content from English to Korean and Brazilian Portuguese is also supported.

Using portlets to administer your portal

Administration of the portal is done through the portal itself, either in a centralized or delegated fashion. Administrators can deliver a new service to users simply by adding new portlets to the pages of the portal. Because these are portlets, just like bookmarks or reminders or news or any other portlets, administrators can control access to them, place them on portal pages and perform any of the usual steps.

Administrative portlets are provided to add portlets to the portal's registry, manage users, groups and access-control lists, integrate Web content with clipping technology, configure Web services-enabled applications, set portalwide settings, manage logs and other common tasks. The next section describes some of the administration portlets and what they do for you. Because some of these portlets have already been described in the previous section, this section focuses on those that have not been covered already.

Global settings portlet

In the global settings portlet, administrators can change portlet settings such as the default language, the cache timeout values and so on (see Figure 38). Settings are also available that control how new user sessions are handled, and what to do when a user tries to access a portlet without authorization. Unauthorized access can be ignored (in other words, the portlet is not displayed), or the portlet can be replaced by an informative message so that the user can take the necessary actions to correct the situation. Returning users might want to pick up where they previously left off, so there is a setting to retain the state of the last visit and return to that page the next time.



Figure 38. Global portal settings

Web clipping portlet

One of the most important portlets is the Web clipping portlet, which is used to display sections of existing Web pages (see Figure 39). You can visually select portions of the page or clip all the text between specific tags. This method enables you to precisely control what markup is extracted and quickly enable access to external Web-site content sources from within WebSphere Portal. The portlet can optionally rewrite the links inside the clipped page, which is useful for displaying existing pages without leaving the portal's navigation structure. Each time you clip a Web page, a new portlet is created in the portal's registry. Whenever the new portlet is displayed, it retrieves the current version of the Web page and extracts the clipped portion to display.

Web Clipping Editor	? - 🗆
Add a Web clipper	
Name and default locale title:	
IBM.COM	
URL to dip:	
http://www.ibm.com	
Description:	
IBM's External Web Site	
I want to set titles and descriptions for other languages	
Next Advanced options Cancel	
Next Neverces options cancer	

Figure 39. Clipping Web pages

Some sites that you clip might require authentication. The Web clipping portlet provides options for no security, basic authentication, form-based or Microsoft Windows NT[®] local area network (LAN) manager (NTLM) authentication. The credentials can be provided by the user or filled in by the administrator.

Web services

A *Web service* is an interface that describes a collection of network-accessible operations. WebSphere Portal provides support for the OASIS WSRP standard. The OASIS WSRP standard simplifies the integration of remote applications and content into portals. With WSRP, you can select from a rich choice of remote content and applications (presentation interfaces and their data) and integrate them into your portal with just a few mouse clicks and no programming effort. You can also configure WSRP producers support for specified WSRP-enabled local portlet applications as presentation-oriented WSRP services and make them available to remote portal server consumers who want to use these services. The WSRP interface is described using a standard XML description language called *Web Service Description Language (WSDL)*, so that the service can be invoked without prior knowledge of the platform, language or implementation design of the Web service. Web services are located using the standard Universal Description and Discovery Interface (UDDI), which can be a private or public registry of Web services.

The Web services administration portlet enables administrators to configure Web services producer and consumer support for specified WSRP-enabled applications within the portal (see Figure 40).



Figure 40. Configuring WSRP producer services

Support for WSRP also enables WebSphere Portal to integrate external applications through remote portal servers, and to promote local portal portlet applications to remote portals. A new portlet can be automatically activated, but with no special permissions. Access control for the new portlet is inherited from the default portlet settings, but can be set explicitly by the administrator (see Figure 41 and Figure 42).

	Install Portlets	
ళ Portal User Interface	The following portlets vill be installed:	
= number	Portlets	
Pordecs	Shipping Application Demo - C2A Version	
Install	OrderDetailC2A	
Manage Applications	OrderMonthC2A	
Manage Portlets	CustomerC2A	
Web Clipping	TrackingC2A	
	AccountsC2A	
Access	Install Cancel	
Portal Settings		
Portal Analysis		



Access Users and Groups Resource Permissions User and Group Permissions Credential Vault	Search on: Title contains Search for: shipp Search		
Portal Settings	Click the Assign Access icon for the res	Showing 101 - 109 of 109	Jump to page: 11 🥐
Douted Applicate	Portlet Title	Assign Access	
- Fortal Analysis	Map Too	P	
	Tourist Information Too	P	
	Account Details	P	
	Tracking Details	P	
	Customer Details	P	
	Order Summary	A	
	Order Details	P	
	YourCo Financial Login Portlet	P	
	YourCo Financial My Profile Portlet	P	
		Showing 101 - 109 of 109 🖂 🖪 Page 11 of 11	Jump to page: 11 👌
	Done	Showing 101 - 109 of 109 🔘 🛛 Page 11 of 11	Jump to page: 11



After the portlet is installed, you can copy it, set its configuration parameters, activate or deactivate it, or uninstall it (see Figure 43).

Manage Portlets				+ / ? - 0
Search by: Title starts with	Search:	Search		
Portlets Click Copy to create Click Delete to remove the por	a duplicate of the portlet tlet from your portal. Clic	. Click Configure to set t k Assign Access to allow	titles, descriptic v others to work	ons and parameters. with the portlet.
		Pag	je 1 of 11 🕨 🖪	Jump to page: 🖬 🖻
Title	Provided	Remote portlet	Status	
Portlet Wiring Tool				× D Z 0 P
Manage Web Modules				× D Z 8 P
Manage Portlets				× D Z 8 P
Manage Applications				× D Z O P
Web Service Configuration				* 6 2 6 2
Themes and Skins				* • 202
Edit Layout				* 1 2 1 2
Page Properties				* D 2 0 2
Manage Pages				× D Z D P
Organize Favorites				* • 2 • 2
		Pag	je 1 of 11 🕨 🗎	Jump to page: 🖬 🖻

Figure 43. Managing portlets

User and group portlets

You can use the portlets provided to manage user and group information without leaving the portal (see Figure 44). You can also manage a user's group memberships. These portlets provide search capabilities and pagination that enable the administrator's interface to scale and manage a large number of users and groups.



Figure 44. Managing user and group memberships

The portal server uses group-membership information to determine what pages, portlets and documents a user is authorized to view and edit. Users can be members of one or more groups, and groups can contain other groups. Users are allowed access to portal resources when access is granted to any group to which the user belongs. Access rights can also be granted to specific individuals, but most companies find that it is easier to manage the access rights of groups instead.

Portal analysis and logging portlets

You can control the tracing and logging activity and monitor user activity through the portal analysis administrative options and portlets that enable tracing and track frequent-user information. You can also control tracing and logging activity by modifying the configuration properties files of the logging subsystem. The portal server also records user activity in logs that can be processed by Tivoli Web Site Analyzer (see Table 2 and Figure 45). Overall usage statistics such as logins and logouts are tracked, along with portlet and page-usage statistics.

Model	Advantage
Project summary	Provides presentation, user management, security and other services for constructing a portal.
User-agent ranking	Displays a ranking of user agents employed by visitors to your site.
Browser ranking	Displays a ranking of browsers used by visitors to your site.
Platform ranking	Displays summary statistics of overall platform activity related to new users, pages, portlets and modifications from portal log analysis.
User ranking	Displays a ranking of users to your site by frequency of visits.
Page ranking	Displays a ranking of the pages viewed or edited by visitors to your site.
Portlet ranking	Displays a ranking of the portlets viewed by visitors to your site.
Commands ranking	Displays a ranking of the commands run by visitors to your site, such as editing pages, creating new pages, and creating or deleting users and groups.
Logins	Displays the number of logins and logouts into the portal.
Resource ranking	Displays a ranking of the resources viewed by visitors to your site.

Table 2. Portal usage reports from Tivoli Web Site Analyzer



Figure 45. A portal usage report from Tivoli Web Site Analyzer

IBM Common PIM portlets

WebSphere Portal, Version 5.1 introduces IBM Common PIM portlets, designed to provide a common portlet interface to interactively work across a number of popular mail and personal information management (PIM) applications, including Lotus Notes and Domino, Microsoft Exchange, IMAP and POP3 mail applications. Common PIM portlets integrate with WebSphere Portal applications and services, including the WebSphere Portal rich-text editor, to create and edit mail messages and documents (see Figure 46). The portlets include the ability to view received attachments using the portal attachment viewers and the ability to store and retrieve documents from the WebSphere Portal Document Manager. Presence-awareness capabilities are also available, to provide access to instant messaging and chat services.

	Corget	• ØrSearch W	at • Ø G G **** DD21 Bode	d States Batters /	198	3	
	True Preparation		Phys. Work Transports 2016 Conservation water prove Labors: A construct A stand. Without only for Physical Physical Physical Construction and Physical Physicae Phy	Harred, 1962 Harred, at 2020 of the function Records at the function Records and the second records for any time and and a contract for an posterior, contract space	h, face-ther 23	reskerts - Microsoft Internet Explorer Fyloritist - John - Bab	11
		Hal			NEXE	G d d Reach Brootes Steda G G- 3 7	-
		A Check for Wall Con	races affine to failer. B Salara B Mara	ga Pulden # athing #		Sigpdemonsteader.tm.com/3011/eps/mypertal/stjp/com/04_5	REVENORMENTATION OF CONTRACT POR TH
			Infra		Parts 1 of 5	- @Search Web + \$2 0 0 Fearlan 201321	Sodiad Stund Hautena
		COLUMN STATE	E.m.				SHELL IN THE REAL PROPERTY AND A DESCRIPTION OF A DESCRIP
		of Links	E later family	· Phone and much for the section and its in the	11/1/94		tradem in his high 1
		and Same	-			Dam Websers Personalisation We Web Descention Ma Streams	the function of the local data
Program with the first second seco		Contractory and	C Latera Facada	Palarine College Annual	10014	Py candid Excelligent Pres.	
		S Track Brook	a description	In Delical Drawings	Linken In	Yes can accord your calles Domini-based salendar hors bla	IAB Common Calencer portial,
The descence of the Control of		- 3 fed: - /ere	C Larges Resents	Frei Lana Hore an Blangart Boliefs in Imailie, M.N.	10,00,04 200	which is part of the Operation Associal Solution Managari attractionation can configure the partial by sideous on the b	nate (PDH) produce Systems informer and constrained
Image: Space and Sp			1 10 11-01 permit in concernance	Calindane JB	10,25,94 100	event the harape flar portal setting to dating the like	ange den Faterbare probleme
Concentration for the second second for the second second for the second for			C Labora Baianda	Exe. 111.011 convertes reserves on hole Brand	10,20,04 626		
Provide Stands Annual Sta			C parameter (Provide (Provide Lar)	Proc. Recordburt, Informational	10,20,04 100	Calesifar .	K1×5
			E Safara Tasanda	the Al Access Indides Inten	10/20/04 148	If the Lifty Paul Boston Adams +	
Ban Linker Ban Linke			E Listers Reserve	Pro. 2 senseres a artificit alla scanineza	10.22/04 235	temperature descent entertainer	
C C C		and as a	index.		Page 1 of 1	Views 1, stark (a) Tuday a Recording 1, 12114	
Cling // Sportmantade/Amount 901 (SportAmodAl/14/63/901/09207) Cling // Sportmantade/Amount 901 (SportMantade/Amount 901 (SportMantade/Amoun						. Noves	rdon:2001 * ()
Proce P						19441-42	
Provide and a second seco						1 mode	4 mundae
The state of the second s							" gra ba sa a sa an tar tanana na falakanta L.
Cheg Augsternentelle kan van Hill Sparnentelle kan van Hill Spa Hill Sparnentelle kan van Hill Sparnentelle kan van							P1 (0) 00-2 15 04 ALL MORALL COLLARD ADDIAted Set of
(Plag Argumentade Amon (2010) particular State St						2 Tuestee	S fedar
Construction of the second state of the s						Contraction of the second data and the second	C
Chep / Equipmentation Len cur (2011) Equipmental Left Acord (C. (2011) Acord (C. (2011)) Acord (C						The set of	
Finder Finder	Dep Handerine	attriction Bart conversion Lines	www.artalit.th.kounded date: Ann.O.O.D.	VPERMITY OWNAMED	rief	d weinester	• Infactor
7 10740					1	-	1 hote
							P 10780

Figure 46. The IBM Common PIM portlets for mail and calendar

Application-integration portlets

By definition, a portal provides access to content, data and services located throughout the enterprise. These include not only predefined connectors and portlets, but also other connectors and portlets that can be created by various tools. ERP and CRM systems are excellent candidates for these portlets because efficient, personalized access to these functions provides measurable return on your portal investment.

WebSphere Portal includes portlets and portlet builders that help you access a variety of ERP and CRM systems. IBM WebSphere Portal Application Integrator is a nonprogrammatic, wizard-driven portlet-building tool, provided with WebSphere Portal, that offers a fast, efficient way for power business users to build new portlets that access various kinds of enterprise application systems, including portlet builders for SAP, Siebel, Oracle and Domino applications, and Java Database Connectivity (JDBC) sources. It also works for relational databases, such as DB2, Oracle and others. WebSphere Portal Application Integrator portlet builders work by querying the back-end system for metadata that describes the business object of the specific enterprise application that the new portlet is meant to work against.

After the business object is selected, the person building the portlet selects which fields and operations to enable in the portlet. These operations include searching, updating, deleting and creating new records, as shown in Figure 47.

					12	F 7 - D			
Oo e Ta	Welcome to the Enterprise Port This portiel enables you to one applications. Enterprise systems will assist you in creating ported manipoles the data contained enterprise application include data performance and employee per basistance object, then choose the rotating, and then divide on all above. Then, you can begin pre-	Let Builder contain numerous busins s which will provide users within your entrarnice again such as employee informs sonal information. You mon partiets that interact with e levels of information, you want co ayout for your periter. To eling portiets.	business objects in ans objects and dat with tools to work a term. Business object those work objects object as the portiest these business ob our must first enter intained by the por get started, dick to	orm enterprise ta. This portiet with and da in year cords, employee to quickly and jetts. Bach the name of a det you are ne configure icon					
	1. Click the configure icon	JOSC Business Obje	ct Builder						+ ? -
		Select markup to	configures						
		html M					Sharring	1-4 of 4 4	
		html M	Display name	Field behavior		Summary	Showing	1-4 of 4 🔍	
		Html	Display name	Field behavior	~	Summary	Sharring The Searchable	2-4 of 4 🔳	
		Field	Display name ACLCODE PREVSETCODE	Field behavior Allow update	>	Summary V	Shorring Rearchable	2-4 of 4 ≪ Ray Person	•
		Reni Field Field Fild Fild Fild Fild Fild Fild Fild Fi	Display name ACLCODE PRIVSETCODE USERID	Field behavior Allow update Allow update	2 2 2	Summary V V	Sharing R Stearchable V V	2-4 of 4 *	•
		Rtml M Reld ACLCODE RIVSETCODE USERID USERID	Display name ACLCODE PRIVSETCODE USERID USERKIND	Field behavior Allow update Allow update Allow update Allow update		R Summary V V V	Shoring R Searchable V V	2-4 of 4 <	• N N N N

Figure 47. Creating an enterprise portlet with WebSphere Portal Application Integrator using the JDBC builder

Besides the ability to select application fields to present in the portlet interface while using the WebSphere Portal Portlet builders, users have the option to select the person field. Users can then match that field to the corresponding back-end application field to be enabled for presence awareness, instant messaging and chat services within the enterprise portlet – without additional programming.

WebSphere Portal Application Integrator portlet builders also provide advanced field options to enable selected portlet fields for data exchange with other portlets and applications using click-to-action, and the ability to access user-profile data to prepopulate portlet fields with user data (see Figure 48).



Figure 48. Enabling click-to-action field properties using the WebSphere Portal Application Integrator JDBC builder

WebSphere Portal Application Integrator portlet builders support the WebSphere Portal credential vault service to store and retrieve users' credentials and pass them on to the enterprise application and business object to manage single signon for the portlet user with the respective enterprise application. After the selections are made, the portal server stores the configuration information needed to run the portlet. No new Java code or service needs to be deployed, just the configuration information for each portlet.

Using this approach, anyone who understands the usage pattern of the enterprise application system can build a portlet in a very short time, and optionally include presence awareness and data exchange between portlets and enterprise applications using click-to-action, as is shown in Figure 49.



Figure 49. WebSphere Portal Application Integrator technology-generated portlets for DB2 and Siebel applications, enabled with presence awareness and data exchange using click-to-action

Collaboration portlets

Corporate portals connect people to the applications, content and resources they need. Portals also connect people to each other, through community pages, shared bookmarks, contact lists and personal productivity portlets. Collaboration is really about people working efficiently and effectively in teams to solve business problems. WebSphere Portal includes out-of-the-box, preconfigured pages, portlets and services designed to support the team and its activities, with messaging, document libraries, user profiles, inboxes and calendars, online directory services, team workplaces and electronic meetings. Users can access these collaborative services in the context of what they are currently doing, instead of having to leave the portal to open another application.

A portal user can see directly from the portlet if other users are online and select from a menu of options to interact with another user. For example, while working in the portal, users can easily see who else is online and then send an instant message, send an e-mail or add a person to their contact lists. Collaborative portlets have advanced built-in features that allow portal users to take actions on documents or user names that appear in a portlet. Lotus Collaboration Center is a set of preconfigured pages and portlets to provide out-of-the-box integration with Lotus Notes and Domino and collaborative products. The Notes and Domino portlet offers access across mail, calendar, to-do list, other Notes application views, team room and discussion. The IBM Lotus Domino Web Access (IBM Lotus Domino iNotes[™]) portlet offers mail, calendar, to-do list, contacts and notebook journals. Portlets are also provided for Lotus Domino Document Manager, Lotus Web Conferencing, Lotus Team Workplace, Lotus Instant Messaging and the people-finder directory-search capability.

Using these components, users have immediate access to key team-discussion, document-management, team-room and mail applications, and a searchable directory of people that is integrated with their workplaces and their e-meetings within the collaborative portal. Users can find people in the directory, see their online status and interact with them using instant messaging and other actions provided by people links. Besides search features, the people-finder portlet provides views of each person's directory record and his or her place in the organizational context. Figure 50 shows an example of a Lotus Domino Web Access portlet. Figure 51 show examples of a Lotus Collaboration Center portlet configuration.

10	Edit View Favorites Too	ls Helo					
Dar		Atanth Clifford	ar Mania	04 R. A			
- COL		Magarin Milanov	es Stuera	1 - 1 - B			
nis (🛃 🖽 Websphere Portal 🦉	Welcome - quickplace	Document	Manager 🖉 K	lekone to Sanetine 🛛 🕮 Workflow Sanple 👘 Donino We	Access	
(el co	me, Mary Smith January 2	1,2004			My Workplac	s 📌 Edit my pro	file 7 Log o
-	Westones						795
LDILS	weingsabe				-		122
	Ny Workplace - Welcome						
Mai	Calendar Address Bo	k Web Conferen	ces Team 8	paces Doour	nents Domino Web Applications Domino Databas	es Administratio	n
						and an in	C1001
4.011						People Pinder	
16	Inbox a	Mary Smith			Chat Preferences Help	Search by:	
					10 0 0	Name -	
	New < Reply < Forw	and < Move <	Follow Up	Mark Read	View / Tools / (9 🖨 🖰	Search for:	
	Who	Dates	Time	Size	Subject	Grace Bowen	1 60
1	Grace Rowen	01/15/2004	11:45AM	1361	John Jones will present at today's meet	Advanced Searc	t
5	Grace Rowen	81/13/2004	02:09PM	1214	Schedule change		-
5	Grace Rowen	01/13/2004	02:08PM	1352	Process change for code review	IEI tide	1
	Grace Rowen	01/12/2004	02:07PM	1297	Company day care program	Detailt	C18.87
	John Jones	01/13/2004	01:58PM	1290	Patent search	Nems	Phone
	John Jones	81/13/2004	01:02PM	1319	Lotusphere toys	Grace Row	en l
	Bill Brown	01/13/2004	01:00PM	1345	Domino 6.5.1 Demo	GreenRovenR	in a spm
-	Bill Brown	01/13/2004	12:59PM	1293	Java training		1000
	Bill Brown	01/13/2004	12:59PM	1302	Portlet Catalogue	E Hide	•
	John Janes	01/13/2004	12:57PM	1271	LDAP V3	Details	Clear
	Grace Rowen	01/13/2004	12:56PM	1314	Which JSP7		
	Bill Brown	01/13/2004	12:54PM	1345	Expense report for the trip last week		
	Bill Brown	01/13/2004	12:53PM	1289	sides for eBU	Hy Contacts	
	John Janes	01/05/2004	01:35PM	1201	Error message from job 'office stuff' in a	-	
	I John Jones	12/19/2003	09:46AM	857	You left your car lights on!	Paaple Options	•
-	Grace Rowen	12/19/2003	09:45AM	790	New meeting	Vark.	
	🖬 Grace Rowen	12/19/2003	09:44AM	1572	Invitation: Customer Presentation meet	I Mary Se	nith
-	X Grace Rowen	12/19/2003	09:44AM	947	Cancelled: Customer Presentation plann	 Jetn Je 	580
	Bill Brown	12/19/2003	09:43AM	871	Sign up for charitable giving	Grace R	diversity.
٠	John Janes	12/19/2003	09:42AM	899	Year end results	B Bill Bros	NO.
	Grace Rowen	12/19/2003	09:41AM	918	Meeting		
-	Grace Rowen	12/19/2003	09:41AM	1560	Invitation: Customer Presentation plann		
	Bill Brown	12/19/2003	09:39AM	880	Can you help with the customer presen		
	John Japar	12/16/2003	05-55DM	1214	how about that report		

Figure 50. Example of the Lotus Domino Web Access portlet



Figure 51. An example of WebSphere Collaboration Center pages and portlets

Portlet	Advantage
Domino Web Access (iNotes)	Provides access to an IBM Lotus Domino Server using the Domino Web Access interface. This portlet can display Domino Server mail, calendar, to-do list, contact and notebook functions.
Lotus Notes and Domino	Provides access to Notes mail, calendar, to-do list, additional Notes database views (optionally across Notes databases), team-room and discussion databases.
Domino Document Manager	Displays a Domino Document Manager library inside the portlet.
Lotus Team Workplace (QuickPlace)	Helps users find, locate, request new team workplaces and work in team workplaces.
Lotus Instant Messaging contact list	Displays a list of people who are online and available for chat, either in the current page or in a named virtual page.
People Finder	Locates a person by name or profile characteristics, and provides quick-search and advanced-search features.
Web conferencing	Lets users schedule, find and attend e-meetings, and shows e-meeting details.
Who is here	Displays list of names for chat, and enables users to modify groups for display and shows a status message.

Table 3. Lotus Collaboration Center portlets

IBM WebSphere Portal Extend integrates tightly with Lotus Domino and IBM® Workplace[™] world-class collaboration products including Lotus Team Workplace and Lotus Instant Messaging and Web Conferencing, by providing portlets and services to access these products seamlessly from the portal. Lotus Team Workplace provides workspaces for sharing and organizing ideas, content and tasks. It includes tools to manage team projects and schedules, organize discussion threads and share documents. The IBM Lotus MyTeam Workplace user interface is shown inside a portlet. The integration between the portal and the team workplace includes single signon, so that users who access the portal can access team workplaces seamlessly, without having to log in more than once.

Lotus Instant Messaging provides instant messaging, shared white boards and application sharing for e-meetings. Lotus Instant Messaging functionality integrates with the portal to enable access to chat sessions and buddy lists, as well as people and place awareness (the ability to tell who the members are and to find out whether they are online, offline or not available).

Collaborative services

IBM Lotus collaborative components are building blocks (APIs and JSP tag libraries) that can be used to integrate the functionality of Lotus Domino, Lotus Instant Messaging and Lotus Team Workplace into the portal. Developers can leverage the features of these products by using components to add user interface extensions to their portlets and portal pages. These collaborative services hide the configuration details of the Lotus products installed within your enterprise. Instead of working with more-complex product APIs, Lotus collaborative components and services APIs give you an easier method to integrate core collaborative features into any portal or portlet.

The benefit of using collaborative components is that they provide standardized access to Lotus applications, with easier APIs that are optimized for the portal. The security context is handled automatically, and upgrades of the back-end systems are transparent to the portlets. The collaborative components work across IBM Lotus Domino 4.67 and later. Table 4 summarizes the collaborative services and collaborative components available through WebSphere Portal.

Model	Advantage
People services	Provides access to an IBM Lotus Domino Server using the Domino Web Access interface. This portlet can display Domino Server mail, calendar, to-do list, contact and notebook functions.
Lotus Notes and Domino	Provide online awareness capabilities so that portlets can determine who is online and what their status is. Also incorporate menus to support chat, e-mail and search options.
Domino data services	Provides access to Domino data, including views, documents and directory- related information. Enables you to locate Domino servers, create and edit documents and work with views.
Discovery services	Provide methods to find people, documents, knowledge maps and profiles.
Workspace services	Provide methods for creating new Lotus Team Workplace workspaces.
Instant messaging services	Provide standardized access to the Lotus Instant Messaging server configured to work with WebSphere Portal.

Table 4. Lotus collaborative services APIs component-services available through WebSphere Portal

People services provide awareness functions that are available through a custom JSP tag. Adding this custom tag creates an online status indicator and a pop-up menu of action choices that access various collaborative services. For example, you could start with a portlet that produces markup like this:

```
<%@page language="java" import="com.lotus.cs.*, java.util.*" %>
<%@taglib uri=»/WEB-INF/tld/people.tld» prefix=»peopleservice» %>
<%@taglib uri=»/WEB-INF/tld/portlet.tld» prefix=»portletAPI» %>
<portletAPI:init/>
<h1>People Awareness Example</h1>
<%
CSEnvironment environ = CSEnvironment.getEnvironment(request);
CSCredentials cred = environ.getCredentials(request);
%>
<H2>
<peopleservice:person>
<%=cred.getUserLoginName()%>
</peopleservice:person>
</H2>
```

The highlighted lines are the special tags needed to make the online presence indicator work. The portal user might see something similar to Figure 52.



Figure 52. People awareness

A good way to apply this idea is to add the people-awareness tags to a portlet that accesses an enterprise application, such as a Siebel function. The exact menu items depend on details about the specific place, the permission level of the current user, and what collaborative products and services are installed in the portal environment. All of the collaborative services except for the peopleservices tags can be used in both desktop and mobile portlets.

Business-process integration and task management

In an on demand business environment, where efficient interaction among customers, employees and suppliers is key to success, you must enable these parties to seamlessly participate and collaborate in business processes. The role-based, user-facing tasks within these business processes – such as completing forms, forwarding for other approvals or transaction completion – must be presented to the right people at the right time in a way that allows them to react quickly and that enables processes to run efficiently. Not only is a list of tasks presented, but all relevant information and access to the applications a user needs to process them must also be available.

WebSphere Portal extends the ability to easily integrate with enterprise applications through features that exploit the process engine of the WebSphere Business Integration Server Foundation process choreographer. The process choreographer capability enables you to integrate your existing business processes and applications into the portal by exposing role-based access to all user interfaces required to interact with tasks and business processes. The portal can display visual alerts notifying specific users when they are assigned a new task. These alerts link users to the My Tasks portlet, where they can view, claim and launch tasks on a new, dynamically rendered portal page (see Figure 53).



Figure 53. The My Tasks portlet for role-based user notification of new tasks

By clicking a task's title, the user can launch a task page that contains all information and applications to process the given task (see Figure 54).

	ne Portar - Micretari II	nerner Lapicker					5.01
Diki Jike	Farmers Tools 1980						
1044 . 0		arch Martavortas & Mada	• 🛛 🖬 • 🖓 🕾				
Jenis @resp.//s	vps18.costingen.deiter.co	en: wolls/wpu/myportal/ut/bv_s	17.0.A/7.0.30PMED=_	ALIBOO-4000/A WEIKCOBLI (HEIGLIC)	11.44		C 60 LTH
Sector Parcel		Ven he	re k.res fari (r).				in Parts 2 Lot my pro-
Molivan Travel	to Tashi Mak Tash Pager	Task Assigned					and the second se
on and Plage	Approva Fordat					10.00	Contract Life Rootal
	Interference	· Color Stradione					To set to ador
	Description of the local division of the loc	They your					· LITTARIA
	Insuring State	W. pol. 2014					a secondary
	Reparent	Contenence					Process state
	Charles Street S						· tixtus.tenetinette
		Interior Terror	the second	Start Street Start, Artistant		10000	Reduced Concentration Routed
	han dong	2.02 all	The area Part	New York	Loff-store	Roberty	For the transmission of the second
							Abasely attached doorsards:
							the second se
	APPEND						Disconnect 1
							Brongerlag Litting2552a7
	Relat						Confestence Whitewater
	and least						a sub- that is the state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the

Figure 54. Portal management of business-process tasks

> Using the process-choreographer execution engine, WebSphere Portal supports implementation of standards-based Business Process Execution Language (BPEL) business processes, which are modeled and created using IBM WebSphere Studio Application Developer Integration Edition. Business processes typically span several enterprise applications and interactions. This results in the creation and management of composite applications from the portal, providing role-based interfaces that manage user interactions across multiple applications. Transactions across systems are integrated using standards-based, data-transfer connector and communication protocols.

Dynamic UI portals

As more information and services are added to your portal infrastructure, you have an increased need to manage transient applications – required only for a discrete period of time – more efficiently. WebSphere Portal includes support for such pages and portlets through new dynamic user interface (UI) manager capabilities and published APIs.

Dynamic UIs are suited for applications in which users might need to have several instances of a page or portlet open for multitasking. Business-process integration is an example of a dynamic UI configuration. Consider a travel request scenario as an example. If several sales representatives need to travel to a conference, their manager would receive multiple travel requests. With static pages, the manager must complete one request before proceeding to the next one. Using dynamic UIs, the manager can open several requests simultaneously and navigate among these and other pages in the portal.

Dynamic pages and portlets contain many of the same properties as static pages and portlets. For example, the user can navigate between static and dynamic pages, or change the window state of a dynamic portlet. However, dynamic UIs are not stored in the portal database, so they have less impact on server performance.

A *dynamic UI* is a copy of a page or portlet definition at the time the instance is created and is not affected by subsequent changes to the definition. As a result, a dynamic UI is independent of its point of origin. For example, if a portlet launches a dynamic page, the launched page is maintained even if the originating portlet or page is deleted. By default, the dynamic UI acquires the title and description of its page or portlet definition. However, it is possible to programmatically overwrite the title and description when the dynamic UI is launched.

> Dynamic portlets include portlets on a dynamic page and portlets that are dynamically added to the page. These dynamic portlets can receive properties from the portlet that launches the dynamic UI.

IBM WebSphere Commerce

Many portals need to include access to commerce functions. These functions include portlets that access a catalog of products and services, or portlets that present a catalog of products and services, and that price, discount, accept orders, process requests for quotes (RFQs) or provide contract-driven views into the catalog to give business customers personalized service. Portals can provide these functions to consumers or to business partners, to facilitate procurement or electronic exchange that links buyers and sellers of goods.

WebSphere Commerce software enables you to build a robust extended enterprise – a network of employees, suppliers and partners collaborating to meet the full spectrum of customer needs by leveraging configurable business processes to speed time to value for customer- and partner-facing projects. The WebSphere Commerce business context engine controls these business processes to present information and functionality to your constituents in a context-sensitive manner. For example, partners have access only to the information for products they are qualified to resell, with parts, inventory information, site language and currency specific to their geographies.

Mobile portals

Next-generation portals must be accessible through more than just traditional desktop browsers. Access through handheld or mobile devices is becoming increasingly important. WebSphere Portal currently supports mobile devices by generating portal pages in three markup languages: HTML for desktop computers and some personal digital assistants (PDAs) and Wireless Markup Language (WML) for Wireless Access Protocol (WAP) devices (typically mobile phones) and compact HTML (cHTML). See Figure 55 for an example of a portal for mobile users.



Figure 55. Siebel application portlet settings optimized for mobile users

Users can customize a unique home page for each device, selecting the content and applications that are most useful on the device. When the home page is requested, the page is produced by first detecting the type of device that is making the request, and then assembling the portlets, with each portlet rendering its content in the appropriate markup language. When a user customizes the home page for a particular device, the portlet selection list shows only portlets that can actually produce markup appropriate for that device. Thus, the list of available portlets for each device depends on what the portlets can actually do. Some portlets are available for all the supported devices, while others are available only on a single device. The user interface design of each portlet varies from device to device, so that the user's experience can be fine-tuned. Thus, the user's home page and each of the portlets might be very different on a mobile phone compared with those on a desktop browser.

Supporting new devices

Because WebSphere Portal supports several different markup languages, portlets can render themselves for a variety of desktop and mobile browsers. Portlets that do not natively support the device markup can optionally be transformed using transcoding technology. This means that portlets can easily and automatically support mobile devices, even if the portlet developer did not explicitly support that device. The framework for supporting markup languages is based on open standards and is extensible – making it easy to support other markup languages or new devices.

To support new browsers and devices, you can add new markup and clients using the corresponding administration portlets. In the markups portlet, the markup name indicates the name of the folders that are used to store the page templates and the theme or skin files matching that markup language (see Figure 56).



Figure 56. Enabling the portal for new markup languages

To add a markup, you must create a new entry specifying the Multipurpose Internet Mail Extensions (MIME) type and the character set associated with that markup. You also need to add all the JSP templates associated with supporting a markup, such as new layouts, panels, skins and style sheets. When the portal server receives an HTTP request, it matches the values in the user agent header against known patterns that identify common browsers for desktops, mobile phones and other devices. Entries for common clients are already set up, but you can add new ones using the manage clients portlet (see Figure 57).

~	Manage Clients	? -
Portal User Interface		
	User Agent:	
Portlets	,*Mozilla/5*	
~	Markup:	
Access	html 💌	
	Markup Version:	
Portal Settings	ns6	
	Manufacturer:	
Global Settings	Netscape	
URL Mapping	Model:	
Custom Unique Names	Navigator	
Supported Markups	Version:	
Supported Clients	6.×	
Search Administration	Capabilities:	
	+ Add	
Portal Analysis	HTML IAVASCRIPT	ete
	HTML_JAVA	
	HIML32	
	Position:	
	after Opera/4.*	
	OK Cancel	

Figure 57. Enabling the portal for new client browsers
The order of the client entries determines the order in which the patterns are applied against incoming HTTP requests. For further information, visit the WebSphere Portal information center at **ibm.com**/developerworks/ websphere/zones/portal/proddoc.html.

IBM provides other tools and products to enable more extensions of WebSphere Portal applications to mobile devices and protocols. IBM WebSphere Mobile Access is a middleware platform that provides an integrated client-server environment and application-development tools to extend business applications and data to mobile users operating in connected or occasionally connected modes. It enables deployment of business data and application services, including portal-based applications, on mobile devices and provides a back-end integration framework, including administration and management services. WebSphere Mobile Access also includes services for e-mail and PIM synchronization, Web access and notification services.

IBM WebSphere Everyplace[®] Mobile Portal provides a multichannel deviceauthoring system, device templates and specific support for extending portal applications to mobile devices, supporting users of mobile devices operating in a connected mode (see Figure 58). WebSphere Everyplace Mobile Portal supports the XML Device Independent Markup Extensions standard, enabling support to compare source content to specific mobile device interface attributes and write appropriate interfaces supporting one or multiple device types. This support enables you to preserve the unique interface benefits of specific mobile interfaces when working with WebSphere Portal source content.



Figure 58. Interact with portal content through mobile-device interfaces optimized for device display by WebSphere Everyplace Mobile Portal.

A complete platform for collaboration and enterprise application integration

IBM WebSphere Portal offers an enterprise portal platform with the complete portal services necessary to deliver a single point of personalized interaction to applications, content, business processes and people. Its portal framework enables you to deliver more value by leveraging applications and data from previous investments, leading to immediate return on investment (ROI). Using WebSphere Portal, you can quickly build scalable portals to help simplify and improve the user's experience with personalized content, business processes and applications. And because the WebSphere Portal framework is built on open standards, you can increase and retain your business agility by easily adapting your portal solutions to support new requirements, positioning your portal infrastructure to capably manage current and future application- and integration-management requirements.

For more information

To learn more about IBM WebSphere Portal, contact your IBM representative or IBM Business Partner, or visit:

ibm.com/websphere/portal



© Copyright IBM Corporation 2005

IBM Corporation Software Group Route 100 Somers, NY 10589 U.S.A.

Produced in the United States of America 05-05 All Rights Reserved

DB2, DB2 Universal Database, Domino, IBM, the IBM logo, Everyplace, Informix, iNotes, Lotus, Lotus Notes, the On Demand Business logo, QuickPlace, Rational, Sametime, SmartSuite, Tivoli, WebSphere, Workplace and the Workplace family of marks, and z/OS are trademarks of International Business Machines Corporation in the United States, other countries or both.

Java and all Java-based trademarks are trademarks of Sun Microsystems, Inc. in the United States, other countries or both.

Microsoft, Windows and Windows NT are trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States, other countries or both.

Other company, product and service names may be trademarks or service marks of others.

International Business Machines Corporation provides this paper "AS IS" without warranty of any kind, either express or implied, including, but not limited to, the implied warranties of noninfringement, merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. Some states do not allow disclaimer of express or implied warranties in certain transactions; therefore, this statement may not apply to you.

Information in this paper as to the availability of products (including portlets) was believed accurate as of the time of publication. IBM cannot guarantee that identified products (including portlets) will continue to be made available by their suppliers.

This information could include technical inaccuracies or typographical errors. Changes may be made periodically to the information herein; these changes may be incorporated in subsequent versions of the paper. IBM may make improvements and/or changes in the product(s) and/or the program(s) described in this paper at any time without notice.

IBM may have patents or pending patent applications covering subject matter described in this document. The furnishing of this document does not give you any license to these patents. You can send license inquiries, in writing, to IBM Director of Licensing, IBM Corporation, 4205 South Miami Boulevard, Research Triangle Park, NC 27709, U.S.A.